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Sometimes, the only things standing between great people

and great accomplishments are distance and time.

So we at Polycom® are committed to rendering miles and

hours inconsequential through integrated, interactive

video, voice, data and web communications. We enable

people to connect and collaborate whether they’re 

separated by a city block, a time zone or an ocean. 

And that makes for more productive, more competitive,

more efficient organizations.

The fully connected workplace has been widely anticipated

for years, but not until the introduction of The Polycom

Office™ — our comprehensive, IT-friendly communications

solution — has the concept been truly realized. Combining

the best group and desktop technologies on the market

today with an easy-to-install network architecture spanning

the complete range of network and protocol types, The

Polycom Office is the industry’s only true end-to-end

solution. Whether the goal is group video and voice 

conferencing that connects multiple sites, one-on-one

desktop communications, virtual collaboration over the

web in real time or some combination of these applications,

The Polycom Office gets you there. In the process, it’s

changing the way the world goes about its business. 

Communications technology, at its best, is transparent,

allowing people to interact and share information as

freely and naturally as they do in person. When that 

happens, there is no distance — and no difference —

between here and there. 

That’s what we mean when we say Polycom is changing

what it means to be there.
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(dollars in millions, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998

Operating Data:

Net revenues $383.2 $373.6 $224.9 $129.5

Gross margin 56.5% 56.1% 55.7% 51.3%

Pro forma operating margin† 15.9% 19.9% 19.3% 12.1%

Pro forma net income† $ 52.0 $ 56.7 $  30.8 $ 14.7

Pro forma diluted 
net income per share† $ 0.59 $ 0.68 $ 0.40 $ 0.21 

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and investments $218.9 $295.3 $  81.6 $ 24.9

Working capital $201.6 $326.0 $ 97.0 $ 51.3

Total assets $821.2 $503.7 $185.2 $ 88.4

Stockholders’ equity $644.0 $422.8 $100.8 $ 40.9

Operating cash flow $ 76.7 $ 38.1 $ 38.1 $ 0.8

†Pro forma figures exclude the tax-effected impact of acquisition-related costs, amortization of goodwill, purchased
intangibles and unearned stock-based compensation, grant repayment, litigation settlement costs, litigation reserve
release, other investments adjustments and purchased in-process research and development. See page 16 for the 
financial results including the effect of the pro forma items.

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements regarding future events, future demand for our products, expansion
into new and existing markets and our future growth prospects that involve risks and uncertainties. Readers are cautioned that
these forward-looking statements are only predictions and may differ materially from actual future events or results. Many of
these risks and uncertainties are discussed under “Other Factors Affecting Future Operations” beginning on page 30. Readers
are also referred to the documents filed by Polycom with the SEC, including our report on Form 10-K for 2001.
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...where people see
eye to eye.

Go ahead — look over your colleagues’ shoulders.

Hear the passion in their voices. Study their facial

expressions. Share the spreadsheet or presentation

you’re working on. Collaborate on a new campaign.

Discuss a sensitive personnel matter. Swap war

stories over lunch. And do it all regardless of where

you are, or where they are.

Polycom is making that kind of communication

and cooperation possible every day, all over 

the globe, for companies of every conceivable

size and type, including IBM, Dow Chemical,

Shell and Samsung. We’re not merely offering

convenience: We’ve harnessed major 

developments in video, voice, data and web

communications technology to give businesses the

tools they need to extend their reach and maximize

productivity, efficiency and competitiveness.  

The Polycom Office is the culmination of a series

of engineering breakthroughs and smart strategic

acquisitions that have enabled our company 

to offer the most powerful, wholly integrated 

communications solution available. And because

it’s based on an architecture compatible with all

network types, The Polycom Office is easily

installed and maintained.  

For group settings in which face-to-face contact

and the ability to share or even co-author 

documents or spreadsheets with one or several

other offices is essential, our iPower™ and

ViewStation® videoconferencing systems vastly

expand the meeting room’s potential. In other

settings, our range of SoundStation® voiceconfer-

encing products fits the bill when a voice session

is what’s needed. Individual desktop users,

meanwhile, can make the same kinds of personal

connections via Polycom’s ViaVideo™ systems,

WebOffice™ suite and SoundPoint® phones.

These communications solutions can be deployed

on a converged network today. Spanning tradi-

tional circuit-switched networks, IP networks, 

or even ATM connections, The Polycom Office

can be configured and managed with our 

extensive network management tools such as

Polycom PathNavigator™, Global Management

System™ and WebCommander™.

Resolving complex business issues, strengthening

client relationships, instilling a spirit of collaboration

companywide and getting more done with less:

That’s the power of being there.

“To carry out the mission-critical functions

necessary to produce the Ultimate Driving

Machine worldwide, BMW employees 

must be able to communicate and share

information across borders, around the

clock. Polycom has effectively enhanced 

our ability to connect, collaborate and 

get the job done for our customers and 

for our shareholders.”

– Dietmar Schittenhelm, Project Director,

Central Services Communications,

BMW AG

Be there•
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...where the public 
is better served 
by its servants.

At a time of heightened international vigilance,

public agencies must be as efficient and 

responsive as the best-run private-sector 

concerns. Emergency agencies must be prepared

to coordinate complex rescue and relief efforts

from a central command point. Government 

intelligence-gatherers and defense-related functions

need to share critical data and late-breaking

developments without delay. And high-ranking

elected officials and their staffs have to be 

accessible — and accountable — around 

the clock. 

That’s why the Federal Emergency Management

Agency (FEMA) relies on Polycom ViewStations

as a component of its rescue and relief efforts 

in each of its regional offices. It’s why the U.S.

Navy, whose work force is in a state of perpetual

motion and readiness, is using Polycom interactive 

systems for ship-to-shore communications and

distance training. And it’s why other essential

agencies and departments in governments 

worldwide are depending on Polycom 

communications tools and infrastructure to 

manage through challenging times.

It’s worth noting that Polycom products are equally

essential in the best of times. In North Dakota,

for instance, Gov. John Hoeven recently delivered

his state-of-the-state address to students, teachers

and businesses statewide using ViewStation 

and iPower group videoconferencing systems, 

all networked through Polycom’s MGC-100™

multipoint control units.

Now, more than ever, people are looking to 

governments and institutions for security, stability,

reassurance and well-being. 

Wherever there’s a need, whenever decisive

action is called for, citizens expect their

leaders to be there.

“I've discovered that to 

talk to people far away,

you don't always have 

to be there.”

– U.S. Secretary of State Colin Powell,

January 2002†
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†as quoted in “A Diplomatic Star with a Singular

Style,” The New York Times, pg. A6, Jan. 20, 2002



...where the world 
is your campus. 

“Education is a lifelong pursuit,” the saying goes,

and so Polycom technology makes it possible,

practical and remarkably affordable for people 

to hit the books anywhere, anytime. That means

working mothers and fathers can earn college 

or graduate credit from home without sacrificing

time with their children. It means laborers and

technicians on the third shift can round out 

their professional credentials on a timetable 

that accommodates their demanding schedules. 

And it means grade-school students can benefit

from interacting in real time with instructors and

business leaders from around the world.

The University of Notre Dame uses Polycom

VS4000™, ViewStation and ViaVideo systems 

to expand the reach of its Executive Education 

program and draw top talent from outside the

school’s geographic base. The Massachusetts

Institute of Technology currently employs Polycom

products for research group interactions as 

part of the Singapore-MIT Alliance Project. At

Washington State University, faculty and students

located across the state use ViewStations and

ViaVideos to conduct meetings, training 

sessions and to tap into the school’s extensive

agriculture, business, humanities and 

social science curricula. And in Oklahoma, 

fourth and fifth graders are using Polycom’s

video communications systems through the

OneNet Network to expand their learning 

horizons with virtual field trips. 

In addition to the obvious advantages for 

students, distance learning has also been a

boon for educational institutions, which can

make the most of existing resources by opening

their doors to students outside their regions.    

Insight, wisdom, knowledge and information 

are readily available at schools, colleges and 

universities around the world every day. 

All you have to do is be there. 

“Notre Dame is rich in tradition, and 

our Executive Education program, which 

incorporates state-of-the art technology to

facilitate learning for students both on- and

off-campus, is part of that heritage. Polycom’s

products provide the functionality, quality,

and reliability necessary to provide a true

Notre Dame experience to all our students.”

–Bill Brewster, Director of Technology,

University of Notre Dame

Be there•
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...because great care 
is essential everywhere.

An expectant father stationed in the Far East

watches his unborn daughter’s heart beating on 

a Massachusetts hospital’s ultrasound monitor. A

young surgeon in New Delhi performs a lifesaving

procedure on a critically injured accident victim

under the watchful eye of his medical school

mentor in New York. A bedridden elderly patient

receives ’round-the-clock attention and care from

the staff of a hospital located a half-day’s drive

from his home. 

Great bedside manner from dozens or even

thousands of miles away? Believe it. It’s 

happening here and now, thanks to Polycom.

At a time when doctors and nurses are in short

supply throughout the world, Polycom helps

make the most of available human and financial

resources. And as an increasing number of 

institutions begin to take advantage of the 

cost savings and logistical advances offered 

by Polycom’s IP-based solutions, they’ll be able

to stretch their dollars even further while offering

a level of patient care that’s second to none. 

The American Telemedicine Association noted 

in 1999 that during the next five to 10 years,

telemedicine will have “a profound and revolu-

tionary effect on the delivery of medical care

throughout the world.” We couldn’t agree more.  

Witness the profound effect telemedicine is 

having on the way acute care is delivered to

patients in remote areas. In Canada, where a

population of more than 30 million is dispersed

over 3.5 million square miles, Polycom technology

allows doctors in the nation’s cities to examine

patients from afar, then coordinate treatment with

local staffs. Similar challenges at regional hospitals

in South Dakota prompted the Avera McKennan

TeleHealth Network to make full use of Polycom’s

iPower collaborative conferencing systems and 

ViaVideo desktop appliances.

We’ve seen it time and again: 

Being there yields better care. 

“The presence of videoconferencing 

equipment has allowed us to extend 

our stroke expertise to the larger medical 

community, enabling the diagnosis of

conditions such as stroke from remote 

locations, which can assist us in saving

lives. Medical professionals can’t be in 

two places at once, but this easy-to-use 

and powerful video technology makes it

possible for us to bring our expertise to 

bear wherever and whenever it’s required.”

–Lee H. Schwamm, MD, Assistant Professor 
of Neurology, Harvard Medical School;
Associate Director, Acute Stroke Service,
Massachusetts General Hospital;
Director, CIMIT National Stroke Program 
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Four key acquisitions punctuated our year. First was Accord

Networks Ltd., whose strength in video-based network systems

extended Polycom’s reach into the converged network infrastructure,

both in enterprise and with service providers. Our acquisition 

of Circa Communications Ltd., meanwhile, allowed us to bring 

our unique expertise in voice technology into the rapidly growing

voice-over-IP market. Leveraging Polycom’s leadership in appliance-

based video products, the addition of PictureTel’s leadership in

data-collaboration, PC-based video products broadens our reach

to the entire range of group and desktop video communications

solutions. Finally, bringing ASPI Digital, an early-stage manufacturer

of installed-room voice systems, into the fold enabled Polycom to

extend our leadership in voiceconferencing into the highest-end

voice applications. The new line of acoustic echo cancellers have 

natural synergies with Polycom’s rack-mounted video systems for

these custom-room applications.

At the same time, we bolstered an already-strong network of 

partnerships with leading communications and technology firms —

Cisco Systems, Nortel Networks and Lucent Technologies, to name

just a few — by inking new agreements with Alcatel and 3Com,

agreements aimed at driving adoption of Polycom’s first-rate 

voice-over-IP communications products.

On the financial front, Polycom generated 2001 revenues of 

$383 million, with 15.9 percent in full-year pro forma operating 

Dear Shareholders:

2001 was a year in which Polycom was in the unique position of

investing both organically and through acquisitions. In one year, we

transformed from the leading video and voice conferencing provider

to a leading end-to-end communications provider offering video

and voice endpoints in both the meeting room and the desktop, and

delivering the leading network infrastructure for video and voice

communications and web collaboration.

Having built our business, profit and cash flow model in the years

leading up to 2001, Polycom was ideally positioned to launch new

products and make smart strategic acquisitions to fortify and grow

our position of leadership in the video, voice, data and web spaces.

By year’s end, we had effectively become the only bona fide provider

of a wholly integrated, end-to-end solution that enables the ultimate in

collaborative communication anywhere, anytime. From one-to-one

desktop video communications and data-sharing in a small setting

to large-scale meetings worldwide, Polycom delivers to any office,

operating over any network type, the kind of unparalleled, real-time

connectivity organizations have been seeking for years. Our vision

of interfunctionality and interoperability is manifested through The

Polycom Office, our flagship communications suite. Based on an

architecture that supports open standards and every major commu-

nications protocol, The Polycom Office serves as an extraordinary

new standard-bearer for interactive communications.

margins and a positive operating cash flow of $77 million. In fact,

by the fourth quarter, we generated record revenues of $120 million

and gross margins of 54.9 percent, driven by the success in our

network systems, voice and newly augmented video businesses.

Polycom’s long track record of strong profitability and positive

cash flow has built a balance sheet that is unparalleled in our

space. This clearly positions our company for ongoing strength 

to service our customers worldwide.

Polycom’s most enduring victories, of course, are the ones that

don’t necessarily make headlines. Every day, all over the world,

leading organizations are becoming more productive and effective

by adopting Polycom products. That’s the ultimate achievement.

When clients report back to us that the adoption has gone so

smoothly that our technology has become mission-critical, we

know our efforts at making their working lives and their companies

more successful are yielding the returns we’ve driven to achieve.

Robert C. Hagerty

President and CEO
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The Polycom Office

Getting you there.

Hear what they’re saying in Chicago.

Join the discussion in Frankfurt.

See what they’re up to in Mexico City.

Help them meet deadlines in Osaka.

In The Polycom Office, you’re not just on top of 

what’s happening. You’re on top of the world. 

And from here, it doesn’t look so big after all.

1312
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Strategic Partners 
and Global Sales Channels

Polycom has established strategic partnerships with 

other leading communications and technology firms to

work with us in developing and delivering our products.

We have agreements with Alcatel, Cisco Systems and

Intel Corporation to develop or market voice-over-IP 

communications products, and we have formed other 

key relationships with leading companies such as Avaya,

Lucent Technologies and Nortel Networks. We sell our

products through a global network of more than 250 

channel partners, including leading communications 

service providers, communications  equipment providers,

value-added resellers, distributors and retailers. 

In addition, we manufacture our products through a 

low-cost outsourced model optimized for quality,

reliability and fulfillment agility.

1414

North America 64%

Europe, Middle East 19%

& Africa 

Asia Pacific 15%

Latin America 2%

Global Approach-2001 Sales by Region
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Results of Operations for the Three Years 
Ended December 31, 2001

The following table sets forth, as a percentage of net revenues, consolidated
statement of income data for the periods indicated. 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999

Net revenues 100% 100% 100%
Cost of net revenues 44% 44% 44%

Gross profit 56% 56% 56%
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 19% 19% 19%
Research and development 15% 12% 11%
General and administrative 6% 5% 6%
Acquisition costs 6% 1% 1%
Purchased in-process research 

and development 14% 0% 0%
Amortization of goodwill and 

purchased intangibles 2% 0% 0%
Grant repayment 0% 2% 0%
Litigation settlement 0% 2% 0%
Litigation reserve release 0% (1%) 0%

Total operating expenses 62% 40% 37%
Operating income (loss) (6%) 16% 19%
Interest income, net 4% 2% 0%
Other investments adjustment (1%) (2%) 0%
Other expense, net 0% 0% 0%
Income (loss) before provision 

for income taxes (3%) 16% 19%
Provision for income taxes 4% 6% 6%
Net income (loss) (7%) 10% 13%   

Net Revenues

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased 3% over the
same period of 2000. This increase was due to increased sales volume of our
network systems products which increased from $42.3 million in 2000 to
$83.1 million in 2001, and to iPower-related service revenue of $7.7 million
resulting from our acquisition of PictureTel in October 2001. These increases
were offset by decreases in volume of our network access, voice communica-
tions and video communications product revenue which decreased 45%, 16%
and 6%, respectively, year over year. The decrease in ViewStation video com-
munications product sales was largely offset by iPower video communications
product sales in the fourth quarter of 2001. We believe that lower sales of our
video, voice and network access products for 2001 were due principally to 
a reduction in capital spending in the United States due to the downturn in
economic activity during the past year which resulted in our channel partners
reducing the level of inventory that they typically hold. On a regional basis,
Asia and Europe revenues increased 39% and 3% respectively, in 2001 over
2000 while North America and Latin America revenues decreased slightly in
2001 over 2000. Included in product revenues for voice, non-iPower video and
network systems products are immaterial amounts of related service revenue. 

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased 66% over the
same period of 1999. This increase was due primarily to an increased sales
volume of our video communication products which accounted for 60% of 
the total increase. In addition, sales volume increases in our network access,
voice communication and network systems products also contributed to 
the improvement over 1999. The increase in voice communications revenue
accounted for 12% of the total increase, the increase in network access 
products accounted for 16% of the total increase, and the increase in network
systems revenue accounted for the remaining 12% of the total increase. We
also had a significant increase in sales in each international region in 2000
over 1999 due to an increased focus on expanding into foreign markets. 
This expansion included adding sales and marketing, operational and 
administrative resources. 
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YOU SHOULD READ THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED NOTES. THE FOLLOW-

ING DISCUSSION CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE

MEANING OF SECTION 27A OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND SECTION 21E

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING

STATEMENTS, INCLUDING, AMONG OTHER THINGS, STATEMENTS REGARDING

OUR ANTICIPATED PRODUCT OFFERINGS, CUSTOMER AND GEOGRAPHIC REV-

ENUE MIX, GROSS MARGINS AND OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES INVOLVE

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES. OUR ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER SIGNIFICANTLY

FROM THOSE PROJECTED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS

THAT MIGHT CAUSE FUTURE RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE

DISCUSSED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT

LIMITED TO, THOSE DISCUSSED IN “OTHER FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE

OPERATIONS” IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT.

Overview

We were incorporated in December 1990. We were engaged principally in
research and development from inception through September 1992, when 
we began volume shipments of our first voice communications product, 
the SoundStation. Currently, our voice communications products consist 
principally of the SoundStation, VoiceStation, SoundPoint and Vortex 
product families. In January 1998, we completed the acquisition of ViaVideo
Communications, Inc., or ViaVideo, a development stage company that
designed and developed high quality, low cost, easy-to-use, group video com-
munications systems. In February 1998, we began customer shipments of our
ViewStation products. Currently, our video communications products consist
principally of the ViewStation, iPower, Visual Concert and ViaVideo product
families. In December 1999, we acquired Atlas Communication Engines, Inc.,
or Atlas, a privately held OEM supplier of integrated access devices, or IADs,
and an emerging supplier of digital subscriber line, or DSL, routers which 

provide voice and data over DSL networks. Our current network access prod-
uct offerings are comprised of our NetEngine line of IADs and DSL routers. 
In February 2001, we acquired Accord Networks Ltd., or Accord, a leading
provider of next generation, rich-media network products that enable Internet
Protocol and other network voice and video communications in both the 
customer premises and service provider markets. Accord’s product line has
become our network systems product family and consists principally of the
MGC and GW, PathNavigator and WebOffice line of products, which provide
multipoint video connectivity and gateway capability through disparate 
networks. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In October 2001, we completed our acquisition of PictureTel Corporation, or
PictureTel. Under the terms of the transaction, we exchanged a combination 
of 0.1177 shares of Polycom common stock and $3.11 in cash for each out-
standing share of PictureTel common stock. In total, approximately 6.6 million
shares of our common stock, net of treasury shares, and approximately
$183 million in cash were exchanged for all outstanding shares of PictureTel’s
common stock. In addition, we assumed PictureTel options and warrants that,
following such assumption, became exercisable for approximately 1.2 million
shares of our common stock. The acquisition has been accounted for as a
purchase business combination using the guidance contained in SFAS 141.
The acquisition of PictureTel enhances our video communications product
family with the iPower PC-based architecture product series. See Note 3 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Through December 31, 2001, we derived a substantial majority of our net 
revenues from sales of our ViewStation, iPower, network systems and
SoundStation products. We anticipate that our ViewStation, iPower, MGC, 
GW, SoundStation products and services will account for a substantial 
majority of our net revenues for at least the next twelve months. See Note
16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Any factor adversely
affecting the demand or supply for these products would harm our business,
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Cost of Net Revenues

Cost of net revenues consists primarily of contract manufacturer costs, includ-
ing material and direct labor, our manufacturing organization, tooling depreci-
ation, warranty expense, freight expense, royalty payments and an allocation
of overhead expenses. The cost of net revenues as a percentage of total net
revenues for fiscal 2001 was 44% which is consistent with the same period of
2000. Overall, a more favorable product mix generated from increased ship-
ments of higher margin network systems products was offset by a write-down
of network access inventory to net realizable value. 

When comparing the cost of net revenues as a percentage of net revenues in
2000 to 1999, the percentage was again the same at 44%. Overall, a more
favorable product mix generated from increased shipments of higher margin
network systems and video products and favorable material price variances
were offset by a write-down of certain media server inventory, including the
ShowStation IP, to net realizable value and higher shipment volumes of our
lower margin network access products. 

Forecasting future gross margin percentages is difficult, and there are a 
number of risks associated with maintaining our current gross margin levels.
For example, uncertainties surrounding revenue levels and related production
level variances, competition, changes in technology, changes in product mix,
manufacturing efficiencies of subcontractors, manufacturing and purchased
part variances, warranty costs and timing of sales over the next few quarters
can cause our cost of net revenues percentage to fluctuate significantly.
Additionally, our IAD and DSL equipment products, iPower products, VoIP
products and other desktop products have a significantly higher cost of net
revenue percentage than our network systems, ViewStation and SoundStation
products. Accordingly, a full year of iPower revenue and any significant revenue
growth in our IAD, DSL, VoIP and other desktop products will have a negative
effect on our cost of net revenues percentages. Also, we may reduce prices
on our products in the future for competitive reasons or to stimulate demand
which could increase our cost of net revenues percentage, and there is the
risk that any of such potential price reductions would not offset competitive
pressures or stimulate demand. In addition, cost variances associated with the
manufacturing ramp of new products such as our NetEngine, VoIP telephony
products, VoiceStation 100 or any other new product could occur, which
would increase our cost of net revenues percentage. Similarly, we may incur
unfavorable cost variances associated with the manufacturing ramp associated

with the transition of our iPower video products from the PictureTel manufacturing
facilities to our subcontractor in Thailand. Further, gross margins associated
with our ViaVideo, ViewStation SP, iPower video products and the SoundPoint
Pro are lower than the targeted gross margins of our product portfolio, while
the gross margins for our network systems products are higher than or closer
to our targeted gross margins. Thus, the proportional contribution of these
products to our product mix can have a significant impact on our overall gross
margins. In addition to the uncertainties listed above, cost of net revenues 
as a percentage of net revenues may increase due to a change in our mix 
of distribution channels and the mix of international versus North American
revenues. Further, during 2001, we wrote down our network access products
inventory to net realizable value which was significantly lower than the value 
of this inventory before the adjustment. This write-down was due in part to 
the delay in the deployment of the DSL technology. The current value of our
network access products inventory is based upon our expectations of the 
performance of the market for our network access products in the future. 
If the market does not grow in the future as we currently expect, we could 
further write down our network access products inventory which would 
negatively affect our cost of net revenues, consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows. 

Sales and Marketing Expenses

INCREASE FROM  
YEAR END DECEMBER 31, PRIOR YEAR

(dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000

Expenses $74,653 $70,745 $43,366 6% 63%
% of Net Revenues 19% 19% 19% 0% 0%  

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and commissions
for our sales force, advertising and promotional expenses, product marketing,
allocation of overhead expenses and customer service and support costs. 
The 6% increase in absolute dollars in 2001 over 2000 was due primarily to
increased marketing efforts related to our network systems products and to 
an increase in our investment in our worldwide sales effort. The increase in
sales and marketing expenses in absolute dollars in 2000 over 1999 was 
primarily related to business growth and associated increased advertising and
promotional expenditures for our video, network systems and network access
products. Additionally, an increase in our investment in our worldwide sales
effort also contributed to the increases over 1999. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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A major contributor to the expected growth of the broadband market has
been the deployment of DSL. Beginning in the second half of 2000 and 
continuing through the year 2001, many DSL providers experienced delays in
delivering their service which caused financial troubles for these companies.
These DSL providers are customers of our network access products through
OEM providers we use as resellers. These service delays slowed the expected
growth in this market which in turn slowed sales of our network access prod-
ucts. If these conditions persist in 2002, they will negatively impact revenues
from our network access products. 

In 2001, 2000 and 1999, we derived a substantial majority of our net revenues
from sales of our video communication, voice communication, network sys-
tems and network access products. No customer accounted for more than
10% of our net revenues for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000. However, one customer, Lucent Technologies, accounted for 11% of 
our net revenues in the three months ended December 31, 2000, primarily
from sales of our network access products. In addition, Lucent Technologies
accounted for 10% of net revenues in 1999. No other customer or reseller
accounted for more than 10% of our net revenues during these periods. 
See Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for business 
segment information. 

Our business is subject to the risks arising from domestic and global econom-
ic conditions. During 2001, the economic recession in the Unites States slowed
overall spending to the point where industries delayed or reduced technology
purchases. If this economic downturn continues in 2002, it will likely continue
to adversely affect our results of operations. If our customers delay or reduce
orders for our products, we will fall short of our revenue expectations for any
given quarter in 2002 or for the entire year. These conditions would negatively
affect our business and profitability as they did in 2001. The impact of adverse
economic conditions in 2002 is difficult to predict at this time and represents 
a significant uncertainty with respect to our 2002 operating results. In addition,
weakness in the end-user market for our products could negatively affect the
cash flow of our reseller customers who could, in turn, delay paying their 
obligations to us. This would increase our credit risk exposure which could
harm our profitability, financial condition and cash flow. 

International net revenues, or revenues outside of Canada and the U.S.,
accounted for 36%, 32% and 30% of total net revenues for 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. See Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
The percentage improvement in the international component of our revenues
for 2001 over 2000 was due to growth in Asia and Europe of sales of our

video communications and network systems products and by reductions in
sales of video, voice and network access products in North America. In fiscal
year 2000, we made investments in Europe, Asia and, to a lesser degree, in
Latin America. This expansion of resources was the main reason for the increase
in the international percentage of total net revenues in 2001 from 2000 despite
the increase in net revenue from sales of our network systems products which
were sold primarily in North America. An increase in our video communication
products unit sales volume in Europe, Asia and Latin America was the primary
reason for the increase in the international percentage of total net revenues in
2000 from 1999. 

We anticipate that international sales will continue to account for a significant
portion of total net revenues for the foreseeable future, and we plan to continue
our expansion in Europe, Asia and Latin America. International sales, however,
are subject to certain inherent risks, including economic weakness in interna-
tional markets, unexpected changes in regulatory requirements and tariffs, 
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations, longer payment
cycles, problems in collecting accounts receivable and potentially adverse 
tax consequences. Additionally, international net revenues may fluctuate as 
a percentage of net revenues in the future as we introduce new products
since we expect to initially introduce these products in North America and
also because of the additional time required for product homologation and
regulatory approvals of new products in international markets. To the extent
we are unable to expand international sales in a timely and cost-effective 
manner, our business could be harmed. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to maintain or increase international market demand for our products.
Additionally, to date, a substantial majority of our international sales has been
denominated in U.S. currency; however, if our international sales were denom-
inated in local currencies in the future, these transactions would be subject to
currency fluctuation risks. For example, as a consequence of our acquisition
of PictureTel, which we completed in October 2001, we anticipate that we will
sell our iPower products and related services in some non-US dollar denomi-
nations. Due to our lack of experience in foreign currency hedging transactions,
we may be at risk of incurring foreign currency losses which could negatively
affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
Further, to date, the establishment of the European Currency Unit, or the Euro,
by the European Union as the common legal currency in Europe has not had
any significant impact on us since a substantial majority of our international
sales are denominated in U.S. currency. However, there may be an impact in
the future due to the recent weakening of the Euro against the dollar as this
requires customers to convert a greater number of Euros into dollars to settle
their outstanding debts to us. 
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We believe that our general and administrative expenses will continue to
increase in absolute dollar amounts in the future primarily as a result of
expansion of our administrative staff and costs related to supporting a larger
company. These additional charges principally include expenses related to
expansion of our information system and infrastructure charges related to the
significant investments being made in international regions. Additionally, 
write-offs associated with uncollectable receivables are difficult to predict, 
and material write-offs could negatively affect our profitability in the quarter
they are made. Further, the acquisition of PictureTel in October 2001 adds
administrative complexity to our organization, which will result in increased
general and administrative expenses. 

Acquisition-related Costs

We incurred acquisition-related costs totaling $24.1 million in 2001, $4.8
million in 2000 and $1.7 million in 1999. In 2001, these costs were associated
with the acquisitions of Accord, Circa, PictureTel and ASPI. The 2001 costs
were made up of $3.7 million of restructuring charges related to facility clos-
ings and severance costs, $6.7 million of asset impairment charges, $13.7
million of other acquisition costs including outside financial advisory, legal,
accounting and consulting services. In 2000, these costs were related to the
acquisition of Accord completed in February 2001. In 1999, these costs were
related to the acquisition of Atlas completed in December 1999. These
charges in 2000 and 1999 were for outside financial advisory, legal and
accounting services. We expect to incur future material expenses relating to
these acquisitions, and there may be other acquisition expenses related to
other such transactions in the future. See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. 

Purchased In-process Research and Development

In the year ended December 31, 2001, we incurred charges totaling $52.6
million for in-process research and development. This research and develop-
ment was acquired as part of the acquisitions of PictureTel, Circa and ASPI,

and totaled $49.3 million, $2.4 million and $0.9 million for each of these
respective acquisitions. The in-process research and development was
expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been
established and no future alternative uses existed. See Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The amount allocated to purchased in-process research and development
and other intangible assets was determined by management using an inde-
pendent appraisal. In-process research and development was identified and
valued through analysis of data provided by us concerning developmental
products, their stage of development, the time and resources needed to com-
plete them, if applicable, their expected income generating ability, target mar-
kets and associated risks. The income approach, which includes an analysis
of the markets, cash flows and risks associated with achieving such cash
flows, was the primary technique utilized in valuing the developed technology
and in-process research and development. The estimated net cash flows from
the products are based upon estimates of revenue, cost of revenue, research
and development costs, sales and marketing costs and income taxes from
such projects and were discounted at rates ranging from 30 to 40 percent in
relation to the stage of completion and the technical risks associated with
achieving technological feasibility. 

Our efforts to develop the purchased in-process research and development
into commercially viable products principally relate to the completion of all
planning, designing, prototyping and testing activities that are necessary to
establish that the products can be produced to meet its design specifications
including function, features and technical performance requirements. It is rea-
sonably possible that the development of this technology could fail because
of prohibitive cost, inability to perform the required efforts to complete the
technology or other factors outside of the our control such as a change in the
market for the resulting developed products. In addition, at such time as the
project is completed, it is reasonably possible that the completed products do
not receive market acceptance or that we are unable to produce and market
the product cost effectively. 
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We expect to continue to increase our sales and marketing expenses in
absolute dollar amounts in an effort to expand North American and interna-
tional markets, market new products and establish and expand distribution
channels. In particular, our acquisitions of PictureTel, Accord, Circa and ASPI
expanded our product portfolio into new products and markets which will
require significant additional marketing expenditures to communicate the
value of the new product offerings as well as significant additional sales
expenditures to develop a new sales organization for these markets. In 
addition, due to the innovative nature of our ViaVideo, ViewStation, iPower,
network systems, Web Office, Path Navigator, Vortex and VoIP products, 
we believe we will incur additional expenses for sales and marketing, 
especially advertising, to educate potential customers as to the desirability 
of these products over competing products. Also, we will further invest in 
the international markets, increasing the absolute dollars spent in this area.
Further, we are currently expanding our service organization to provide
expanded and improved support for our products which will increase our
sales and marketing expenses. 

Research and Development Expenses

INCREASE FROM  
YEAR END DECEMBER 31, PRIOR YEAR

(dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000

Expenses $59,416 $43,570 $25,724 36% 69%
% of Net Revenues 15% 12% 11% 3% 1%

Research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation
costs, consulting fees, depreciation and an allocation of overhead expenses.
Increases in research and development expenses occurred for all product
lines except network access products, which declined slightly, in 2001 com-
pared with 2000. The 3% increase in research and development expense as a
percentage of net revenues reflects our continued investments in our existing
products as well as new investments in our iPower products, which were
acquired through the PictureTel acquisition. Individually, the increase in net-
work systems product development expenditures accounted for 43% of the
total increase, video communication product development expenditures
accounted for 52% of the total increase, voice communications development
expenditures accounted for 6% of the total increase and the decrease in 

network access product development accounted for 1% of the change.
Increases in video, voice, network systems and network access product
development all contributed to the total increase in fiscal 2000 over fiscal
1999. Individually, the increase in video communication product development
expenditures accounted for 37% of the total increase, network access devel-
opment expenditures accounted for 29% of the total increase, network systems
development expenditures accounted for 23% of the total increase, and 
the increase in voice communications product development expenditures
accounted for the remaining 11% of the total increase. In all years presented,
all research and development costs have been expensed as incurred. 

We believe that technological leadership is critical to our success and we 
are committed to continuing a high level of research and development. Also,
continued investment in new product initiatives will require significant research
and development spending. Consequently, we intend to increase research
and development expenses in absolute dollars in the future. 

General and Administrative Expenses

INCREASE (DECREASE)  
YEAR END DECEMBER 31, FROM PRIOR YEAR

(dollars in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000

Expenses $21,564 $20,702 $12,729 4% 63%
% of Net Revenues 6% 5% 6% 1% (1%)

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation costs,
allocation of overhead expenses, bad debt write-offs, legal expenses and
accounting expenses. The increase in general and administrative expenses 
in the year ended December 31, 2001 over the same period of 2000 was due
to higher costs associated with increased staffing and other infrastructure
costs offset slightly by lower expenditures associated with the implementation
of our enterprise resource planning system implemented in 2000 and expense
controls initiated in 2001. The increase in general and administrative expenses
in 2000 over 1999 was due to increased staffing and infrastructure costs to
support our growth, including the additional costs to upgrade our management
information system, expansions in Europe and Asia and higher bad debt
expense. 
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Interest Income, Net

Interest income, net consists of interest earned on our cash, cash equivalents
and investments less bank charges resulting from the use of our bank accounts
and interest expense from our credit facilities. Interest income, net of interest
expense, was $12.8 million in 2001, $8.4 million in 2000 and $1.6 million in
1999. The fluctuations in interest income, net are due primarily to changes in
average cash and investment balances throughout the year, the most signifi-
cant of which relates to our follow-on common stock offering in 2000 and
Accord’s initial public offering which together raised $203.2 million in the third
quarter of 2000. Interest income, net will likely fluctuate in 2002 due to the
movement in our cash balances caused by our cash outlay of approximately
$183 million in October 2001 related to acquisition of PictureTel and the cash
increase of approximately $238 million related to the follow-on public common
stock offering completed in the first quarter of 2002. In addition, interest
income, net will also fluctuate due to the reduction in interest rates throughout
2001 related to the monetary policy actions taken by the United States
Federal Reserve Board to stimulate economic growth in the United States. 

Other Investments Adjustment

For strategic reasons we have made various investments in private companies
that are included in “Other long-term assets” in our consolidated balance
sheet. We monitor the value of these investments for impairment and make
appropriate reductions in carrying value when necessary. During 2001 and
2000, we determined that the value of these investments became impaired and
we reduced the carrying amount by $3.2 million and $5.9 million, respectively. 

Provision for Income Taxes

The tax provision for income taxes was $14.7 million in 2001, $24.2 million 
in 2000 and $13.6 million in 1999. The decrease in the provision for income
taxes in 2001 over 2000 was attributable to a decrease in U.S. tax and an

increase in foreign tax due to an increase in foreign income. The increase 
in provision for income taxes in 2000 over 1999 was primarily due to an
increase in taxes for both U.S. and foreign income. 

As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $9.1 million in net operating
loss carryforwards and $9.9 million in tax credit carryforwards as well as other
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences. See Note 15 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2001, our principal sources of liquidity included cash and
cash equivalents of $126.8 million, short-term investments of $23.3 million and
long-term investments of $68.7 million. Short-term and long-term investments
consisted primarily of U.S. government securities, state and local government
securities and corporate debt and equity securities of which $9.7 million was
invested in publicly traded equity securities. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. In addition, we had a $25.0 million line of credit with a
bank and $4.3 million in other investments in equity securities of privately-held
companies shown in “Other long-term assets” on our balance sheet. 

We generated cash from operating activities totaling $76.7 million in 2001,
$38.1 million in 2000 and $38.1 million in 1999. The increase in cash provided
from operating activities in 2001 over 2000 was due to a net reduction in trade
receivables, inventories and deferred taxes in 2001 compared to increases for
these items in 2000 and a smaller increase in prepaid and other current assets
compared to 2000, offset by a net reduction in total liabilities such as accounts
payable, taxes payable and other liabilities and lower net income before 
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The following are the values assigned to each acquired PictureTel in-process
research and development project, the estimated completion percentages,
expected technology lives, estimated time and costs to complete at the close
of the PictureTel acquisition (in thousands):

The projects are for next generation products to enable PC based multipoint
collaborative audio and video conferencing over multiple communication 
standards or protocols. There have been no material changes to the estimat-
ed time and cost to complete the in-process research and development at
December 31, 2001. 

Amortization of Goodwill and Other Purchased Intangibles

In the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded a $6.0 million amortization
of goodwill charge related to the Circa acquisition and amortization of other
intangibles related to the PictureTel, Circa and ASPI acquisitions. Goodwill
and other intangible assets are being amortized to expense over their estimat-
ed useful lives of three years. Beginning January 1, 2002, under the guidance
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” we will no longer amortize goodwill over its estimated 
useful life, but instead will evaluate this asset for impairment and record
adjustments, if necessary. Amortization of other purchase intangibles will 
continue over their estimated useful lives. 

Grant Repayment

In the fourth quarter of 2000, Accord incurred a charge of $5.9 million relating
to the repayment of all outstanding grants from the Office of the Chief

Scientist in Israel, or OCS, and the Israel-U.S. Binational Industrial Research
and Development foundation, or BIRD. The payments to OCS and BIRD were
derived directly from the commercial success of Accord products resulting
from research and development funding received from those organizations. 

Litigation Settlement

On November 20, 1998, a patent infringement claim was filed against
Accord’s U.S. subsidiary, Accord Networks, Inc., in the United States District
Court, District of Massachusetts, alleging that the U.S. subsidiary had and was
willfully and deliberately infringing on one of Ezenia!’s patents. The complaint
was later amended to allege that the U.S. subsidiary also had and was willfully
and deliberately infringing on other patents. On June 10, 1999, Accord was
added as a defendant in the lawsuit. On June 16, 2000, Accord and its U.S.
subsidiary entered into a written settlement agreement, and the Court entered
an order dismissing the case. The lawsuit settlement cost of $6.5 million,
which final payment was made on December 28, 2000, represents a one-time
charge resulting from this settlement and was reported under “Litigation 
settlement” in the consolidated statement of operations in June 2000. 

Litigation Reserve Release

On September 3, 1997, VTEL Corporation, or VTEL, filed a lawsuit in the State
District Court in Travis County, Texas against ViaVideo Communications, Inc.
and its founders, who were formerly employed by VTEL. On May 27, 1998, fol-
lowing our acquisition of ViaVideo, VTEL amended its suit to add Polycom as
a defendant. In the lawsuit, VTEL alleged breach of contract, breach of confi-
dential relationship, disclosure of proprietary information and related allega-
tions. ViaVideo, its founders and Polycom answered the suit, denying in their
entirety VTEL’s allegations. On March 3, 2000, VTEL voluntarily dismissed the
allegations against Polycom and ViaVideo with prejudice for no consideration.
As a one-time item in the first quarter of 2000, the excess accrual associated
with the expenses we estimated we would incur in connection with this lawsuit
totaling $1.8 million was released since no further material expenses will be
incurred. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Project A $  5,161 71% 4 years 3-6 months $  2,106 
Project B 12,250 82% 5 years 9-12 months 2,725 
Project C 24,750 53% 5 years 15-24 months 21,810  
Other projects 7,131 51% 3-5 years 6-24 months 6,795         
Total $ 49,292 $ 33,436
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results
of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We review the accounting policies
we use in reporting our financial results on a regular basis. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis,
we evaluate our estimates, including those related to product returns, 
accounts receivable, inventories, investments, intangible assets, income taxes,
warranty obligations, restructuring, contingencies and litigation. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabili-
ties that are not readily apparent from other sources. Results may differ from
these estimates due to actual outcomes being different from those on which
we based our assumptions. These estimates and judgments are reviewed by
management on an ongoing basis, and by the Audit Committee at the end of
each quarter prior to the public release of our financial results. We believe the
following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. 

Revenue Recognition and Product Returns

We recognize hardware product revenue using the guidance from SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”
and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 48 “Revenue
Recognition When Right of Return Exists.” We recognize software revenue in
accordance with SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended by
SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, with
Respect to Certain Transactions.” Under these guidelines, we defer revenue
recognition on transactions where persuasive evidence of an arrangement
does not exist, title has not transferred, product payment is contingent upon
performance of installation or service obligations, the price is not fixed or
determinable or payment is not reasonably assured. In addition, we estimate
what future product returns may occur based upon actual historical return
rates and reduce our revenue by these estimated future returns. If the histori-

cal data we use to calculate these estimates does not properly reflect future
returns, these estimates could be revised. In addition, we defer revenue asso-
ciated with long-term customer maintenance contracts. The value of these
contracts is recognized ratably over the length of the customer contract. 

Customer Programs and Incentives

We record estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs and 
incentive offerings including special pricing agreements, promotions and
other volume-based incentives. If market conditions were to decline, we may
take actions to increase customer incentive offerings possibly resulting in an
incremental reduction of revenue at the time the incentive is offered. 

Warranty

We provide for the estimated cost of hardware product warranties at the time
revenue is recognized. While we engage in product quality programs and
processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material
usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure.
Should actual product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs
differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would 
be required. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of our customers to make required payments. If the financial
condition of our customers or channel partners were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. 

Excess and Obsolete Inventory

We write down our excess and obsolete inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future product life-cycles, product demand and market
conditions. If actual product life-cycles, product demand and market condi-
tions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional
inventory write-downs may be required. 
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non-cash items. When comparing 2000 activity to 1999, improvements in net
income before non-cash items and an increase in the tax benefits from the
exercise of employee stock options and employee stock purchase plan 
transactions was offset by higher growth in inventories, deferred taxes, 
non-trade receivables, which are included in other current assets and a 
lower increase in current liabilities. 

The total net change in cash and cash equivalents for the year ended 2001
was a decrease of $62.6 million. The primary uses of cash during this period
were $121.8 million paid for purchase acquisitions net of cash received from
acquired companies, $41.5 million for the purchase of convertible notes
receivable related to the PictureTel acquisition, $12.8 million for purchases of
property, plant and equipment and $1.3 million for the purchase of trademarks
and licenses. The primary sources of cash were $76.7 million from operating
activities, $20.8 million for net maturities and sales of investments and
$17.3 million associated with the exercise of stock options and purchases
under the employee stock purchase plan. The positive cash from operating
activities was primarily the result of net loss before considering non-cash
expenses, such as depreciation, amortization, the provision for doubtful
accounts, other investments adjustment, the write-off of in-process research
and development and the tax benefits from the exercise of employee stock
options, lower trade receivables, inventories and deferred taxes, offset by a
net decrease in total liabilities, including accounts payable, taxes payable, and
other liabilities, and an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets.
The positive cash impact due to inventory reductions may not occur in 2002
as it did in 2001. 

In February 2002, we completed a follow-on public offering in which we sold
8,050,000 shares of our common stock, including an over-allotment option of
1,050,000 shares exercised by the underwriters, at a price of $31.20 per
share. Our net proceeds from this offering were approximately $238 million
after taking into account underwriting discounts and commissions and our
expenses. We intend to use the net proceeds from this sale primarily for gen-
eral corporate purposes, including working capital and capital expenditures,
as well as for acquisitions of complementary businesses or technologies. 

We had issued letters of credit under our bank credit facility, totaling $8.4 mil-
lion, to guarantee certain obligations of PictureTel, which we subsequently

returned to the bank in December 2001. Other material commitments consist
of obligations under our operating leases. In addition, we had open purchase
orders and other contractual obligations of approximately $28.5 million related
to inventory purchases as of December 31, 2001. We also maintain, from time
to time, commercial letters of credit as payments for the importation of certain
products. These amounts do not exceed $100,000 and are outstanding less
than 120 days. In addition, our bank has issued letters of credit to secure the
leases on some of our offices. These letters of credit total approximately
$186,000 and are secured by our credit facilities or cash deposits with our
banks. See Notes 10 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As of December 31, 2001, the following future minimum lease payments are
due under lease obligations, excluding leases subject to cancellation within
twelve months of December 31, 2001 (in thousands): 

LEASES

Year ending December 31,

2002 $   13,230  
2003 13,817  
2004 13,447  
2005 11,563  
2006 11,248  
Thereafter 48,636    
Minimum future lease payments $ 111,941

We believe that our available cash, cash equivalents, investments, bank line of
credit and the proceeds of the stock offering completed in February 2002 will
be sufficient to meet our operating expenses and capital requirements for the
forseeable future. However, we may require or desire additional funds to sup-
port our operating expenses and capital requirements or for other purposes,
such as acquisitions or competitive reasons, and may seek to raise such addi-
tional funds through public or private equity financing or from other sources.
We cannot assure you that additional financing will be available at all or that, if
available, such financing will be obtainable on terms favorable to us and
would not be dilutive. Our future liquidity and cash requirements will depend
on numerous factors, including the introduction of new products and potential
acquisitions of related businesses or technology. 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”
SFAS 141 requires the purchase method of accounting for business combina-
tions initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method. We adopted this pronouncement beginning with the PictureTel
Corporation acquisition completed on October 18, 2001. See Note 3 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.
SFAS 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method
to an impairment only approach. In addition, the standard includes provisions,
upon adoption, for the reclassification of certain existing recognized intangi-
bles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of existing recognized intan-
gibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported good-
will and the testing for impairment of existing goodwill and other intangibles.
For existing goodwill and other intangibles, we will adopt this pronouncement
on January 1, 2002. As a result of this adoption, $6.3 million of goodwill,
which was to be amortized ratably through March 2004, will cease. We 
adopted the non-amortization provision for goodwill contained within this
pronouncement for new acquisitions beginning with the PictureTel acquisition
completed on October 18, 2001. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. 

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually for impairment using a
two-step process. The first step is to identify a potential impairment and, in
transition, this step must be measured as of the beginning of the fiscal year.
However, a company has six months from the date of adoption to complete
the first step. The second step of the goodwill impairment test measures the
amount of the impairment loss, measured as of the beginning of the year of
adoption, if any, and must be completed by the end of our fiscal year.
Intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life will be tested for impair-
ment using a one-step process which compares the fair value to the carrying

amount of the asset as of the beginning of the fiscal year, and pursuant to the
requirements of SFAS 142 will be completed during the first quarter of 2002.
Any loss resulting from the first step impairment test will be reflected as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first quarter of
2002. We have not yet determined what effect these impairment tests will have
on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 supersedes FASB Statement No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and reporting 
provisions relating to the disposal of a segment of a business of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 30. We are currently assessing the impact of
SFAS 144 on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and
cash flows. 

In September of 2001, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, issued
EITF Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by Vendor to a
Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” which is a codification 
of EITF Issues No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” No. 00-14,
“Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,” and No. 00-22, “Accounting for
“Points’ and Certain Other Time- or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers and
Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered in the Future.” EITF 00-
25, as codified by EITF 01-09, established the treatment in the statement of
operations of vendor consideration to resellers of a vendor’s products. EITF
00-25 and 01-09 are effective for the interim and year-end periods beginning
after December 15, 2001. In the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
$8.5 million and $9.5 million, respectively, of co-operative advertising consid-
eration was charged as a reduction of revenue. We are currently assessing
the impact of the adoption of this issue on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows.
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Deferred and Refundable Taxes

We estimate our actual current tax exposure together with our temporary 
differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as deferred rev-
enue, for tax and accounting purposes. These temporary differences result in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. We must then assess the likelihood that our
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the
extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation
allowance. At December 31, 2001, we had no valuation allowance established
against our deferred tax assets. To the extent we establish a valuation allowance
or increase this allowance in a period, we must include and expense the
allowance within the tax provision in the statement of operations. Significant
management judgment is required in determining our provision for income
taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance
recorded against our net deferred tax assets. 

Fair Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed 
in Purchase Combinations

The purchase combinations carried out by us require management to estimate
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the combina-
tions. These estimates of fair value are based on our business plan for the
entities acquired including planned redundancies, restructuring, use of assets
acquired and assumptions as to the ultimate resolution of obligations
assumed for which no future benefit will be received. For example, with the
PictureTel acquisition, we identified vacated or redundant facilities that we
intend to terminate or sublease. Should actual use of assets or resolution of
obligations differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated fair values
would be required. If a change in estimate occurs after one year of the 
acquisition, the change would be recorded in our statement of operations. 

Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangibles

We assess the impairment of goodwill and other identifiable intangibles when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable. Some factors we consider important which could trigger
an impairment review include the following: 

• Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected 
future operating results; 

• Significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or 
the strategy for our overall business; and 

• Significant negative industry or economic trends. 

When we determine that the carrying value of goodwill and other identified
intangibles may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more
of the above indicators of impairment, we measure any impairment based on
a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount rate determined 
by our management to be commensurate with the risk inherent in our current
business model. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002 we will cease to amortize goodwill 
arising from acquisitions completed prior to July 1, 2001. In lieu of amortization,
we are required to perform an initial impairment review of our goodwill in 
2002 and an annual impairment review thereafter. If we determine through 
the impairment review process that goodwill has been impaired, we would
record the impairment charge in our statement of operations. 

Non-marketable Securities

Periodically, we make strategic investments in companies whose stock is not
currently traded on a major stock exchange. The cost method of accounting
is used to account for these investments as we hold a non-material ownership
percentage. Each quarter, we assess the value of these investments by using
information acquired from industry trends, the management of these companies
and other external sources. Based on the information acquired, we record an
investment impairment charge when we believe an investment has experienced
a decline in value that is other than temporary. Future adverse changes in
market conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could
result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments
that may not be reflected in an investment’s current carrying value, thereby
possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future. 
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Our quarterly revenues and operating results depend upon the volume and
timing of customer orders received during a given quarter and the percentage
of each order that we are able to ship and recognize as revenue during each
quarter, each of which is extremely difficult to forecast. Moreover, the majority
of our orders in a given quarter historically have been shipped in the last
month of that quarter and sometimes in the last few weeks of the quarter. 
This trend is likely to continue, and any failure or delay in the closing of orders
during the last part of a quarter would materially harm our operating results. 
In such event, the price of our common stock would decline. 

Difficulty in estimating customer orders can harm our operating results.

We typically ship products within a short time after we receive an order and
historically have had no material backlog. Therefore, backlog is not a good
indicator of future net revenues. As a result, net revenues for any particular
quarter are extremely difficult to predict. Additionally, orders from our reseller
customers are based on the level of demand from end-users. The uncertainty
of end-user demand means that any quarter could be significantly negatively
impacted by lower end-user orders, which could in turn negatively affect
orders we receive from our resellers. Accordingly, our expectations for both
short and long-term future net revenues are based almost exclusively on our
own estimate of future demand and not on firm reseller orders. Our expense
levels are based in part on these estimates. Because we receive a majority of
our customer orders in the last month of a quarter and often in the last few
weeks of the quarter, we are limited in our ability to reduce expenses quickly if
for any reason orders and net revenues do not meet our expectations in a
particular period. Accordingly, any significant shortfall in demand for our prod-
ucts in relation to our expectations would have an immediate adverse impact
in our operating results. 

General economic conditions may reduce our revenues 
and harm our business.

As our business has grown, we have become increasingly exposed to adverse
changes in general economic conditions, which can result in reductions in
capital expenditures by our end-user customers, longer sales cycles, deferral
or delay of purchase commitments for our products and increased price com-
petition. These factors adversely impacted our operating results in 2001. For
example, we experienced a sequential revenue decrease in each of the first
three quarters of 2001, and a profitability decrease in 2001 from 2000. While

our revenues increased in the fourth quarter of 2001 as compared to the third
quarter of 2001, the first quarter of 2002 is subject to similar risks, particularly
if the current economic downturn continues. 

In addition, we also face the risk that our resellers have built up inventories 
in anticipation of a growth in sales. If such sales growth does not occur as
anticipated by these resellers for any reason, including the continuation of the
current economic downturn into 2002, these resellers may substantially
decrease the amount of product they order from us in subsequent periods or
product returns may exceed historical or predicted levels, which would harm
our business. Sales to end-users by our channel partners during 2001 were
lower than expected. Therefore our channel partners reduced their inventory
levels during 2001, and may reduce their inventory levels in the future, 
particularly in our voice and video communication products area. 

We face risks related to our dependence on distributors 
and resellers to sell our products.

We are subject to risks associated with our distributors’ and resellers’ 
product inventories and product sell-through.

We sell a significant amount of our products to distributors and resellers who
maintain their own inventory of our products for sale to dealers and end-users.
A substantial percentage of our total products sold during a particular quarter
consists of distributor and reseller stocking orders. We typically provide spe-
cial cost or early payment incentives for distributors and resellers to purchase
the minimum or more than the minimum quantities contemplated under their
agreements with us. If these distributors and resellers are unable to sell an
adequate amount of their inventory of our products in a given quarter to 
dealers and end-users or if distributors and resellers decide to decrease their
inventories for any reason, such as the current economic downturn that began
in the fourth quarter of 2000 and is continuing into 2002, the volume of our
sales to these distributors and resellers and our net revenues would be
negatively affected. For example, the current economic downturn negatively
affected our business and operating results in 2001. If these conditions
continue in the future, our business and operating results will continue to be
negatively affected. Moreover, if we choose to eliminate or reduce stocking
incentive programs, quarterly revenues may fail to meet our expectations or
be lower than historical levels. 
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OTHER FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATIONS

Investors should carefully consider the risks described below before making
an investment decision. The risks described below are not the only ones we
face. Additional risks we are not presently aware of or that we currently believe
are immaterial may also impair our business operations. Our business could
be harmed by any of these risks. The trading price of our common stock could
decline due to any of these risks, and investors may lose all or part of their
investment.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly and are
not a good indicator of future performance.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and
may vary significantly in the future as a result of a number of factors, many of
which are out of our control. These factors include: 

• changes in general economic conditions, as has been the case recently 
with the economic downturn, and specific economic condtions prevailing in
the broadband communications industry and other technology industries; 

• near and long-term impact of recent terrorist attacks and incidents, the 
military response to those attacks and any future terrorism or responses 
to such terrorism; 

• the effects of integrating PictureTel’s operations, products, distribution 
channels and personnel; 

• fluctuations in demand for our products; 
• the levels of inventory of our products that our channel partners are willing 

to maintain; 
• our distribution channels reducing their inventory levels; 
• slowing sales by our resellers to their customers, which places further 

pressure on our resellers to minimize inventory levels and reduce 
purchases of our products; 

• the level and mix of inventory that we hold to meet future demand; 
• further delays in the rollout of digital subscriber line, or DSL, technology or 

the failure of such rollout to occur; 

• market acceptance of new product introductions and product enhancement
by us or our competitors; 

• impact of the unstable political situation and recent hostilities in the Middle 
East and their impact on our Israeli operations; 

• the prices of our products and those of our competitors; 
• the timing and size of the orders for our products; 
• the mix of products we sell; 
• fluctuations in the level of international sales and our exposure to 

international currency fluctuations; 
• the cost and availability of components; 
• manufacturing costs; 
• the level and cost of warranty claims; 
• changes in our distribution network; 
• the impact of seasonality on our various product lines and geographic 

regions; and 
• the level of royalties we must pay to third parties. 

Although we experienced sequential quarterly revenue growth from 1998
through 2000, fluctuations in our quarterly operating results due to these or
other factors could prevent us from sustaining sequential quarterly growth or
meeting our expectations, and investors should not use our past results to
predict future operating margins and results. For example, we experienced
sequential quarterly revenue decreases in the first three quarters of fiscal
2001, and our profitability decreased in 2001 from 2000. 

As a result of these and other factors, we believe that period-to-period com-
parisons of our historical results of operations are not a good predictor of our
future performance. If our future operating results are below the expectations
of stock market securities analysts or investors, our stock price will decline. 

Because a disproportionate amount of our sales occur at the end
of a quarter, our operating results are unpredictable.

The timing of our customer orders and product shipments can harm our 
operating results.
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Conflicts with our channel partners could hurt sales of our products.

We have various OEM agreements with some major telecommunications
equipment manufacturers, such as Cisco Systems and Lucent Technologies,
whereby we manufacture our products to work with the equipment of the
OEM. These relationships can create channel conflicts with our other distribu-
tors who directly compete with our OEM partners, which could adversely
affect revenue from non-OEM channels. Because many of our distributors 
also sell equipment that competes with our products, these distributors could
devote more attention to these other products, which could harm our busi-
ness. For example, a significant amount of our network systems revenues are
generated from sales to Tandberg and VCON which compete with us in the
video communications product market. Due to this conflict, they may signifi-
cantly reduce their orders of our network systems products which could harm
our business. Further, other channel conflicts could arise which cause distrib-
utors to devote resources to other non-Polycom communications equipment,
which would negatively affect our business or results of operations. 

Some of our current and future products are directly competitive with the
products of our channel and strategic partners. For example, we have an
agreement with Cisco Systems under which our Acoustic Clarity Technology
is included in VoIP end-points sold by Cisco Systems. We intend to introduce
a VoIP end-point under the Polycom brand that incorporates technology we
license from Cisco Systems. This product will compete directly with the VoIP
products sold by Cisco Systems. In addition, our network access products are
directly competitive with products produced by Siemens, a strategic reseller of
our video communications products. As a consequence of conflicts such as
these, competition with our partners is likely to increase, potentially resulting
in strains on our existing relationships with these companies. Any such strain
could limit the potential contribution of our strategic relationships to our busi-
ness, restrict our ability to form strategic relationships with these companies 
in the future and create additional competitive pressures on us, any of which
could harm our business. 

In addition, we depend on several key agreements, including our agreement
with Jetstream Communications, in the network access products market.
Conflicts may occur in this evolving market as we seek other relationships.
These conflicts could harm our business. 

Our channel partner contracts are typically short-term and early termination 
of these contracts may harm our results of operations.

We do not typically enter into long-term contracts with our reseller customers,
and we cannot be certain as to future order levels from our reseller cus-
tomers. When we do enter into a long-term contract, the contract is generally
terminable at the convenience of the customer. In the event of an early termi-
nation by one of our major reseller customers, it is unlikely that we will be able
to rapidly replace that revenue source, which would harm our results of opera-
tions. Furthermore, we will require those resellers carrying PictureTel products
who did not previously have a reseller relationship with us to enter into new
reseller agreements with us. Because these agreements are likely to contain
different terms from their previous agreements with PictureTel, these resellers
may be unwilling to enter into such agreements with us. Any loss of these
resellers could harm our results of operations. 

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our revenue.

Sales of some of our products have experienced seasonal fluctuations which
have affected sequential growth rates for these products, particularly in our
third and first quarters. For example, there is a slowdown in the third quarter
for sales of our products in the European region. In addition, sales of our
video communications products have typically declined in the first quarter of
the year compared to the fourth quarter of the prior year. These fluctuations
negatively affect our business during those quarters, which could cause our
operating results to fall short of anticipated results for such quarters. 

Difficulties in integrating our acquisitions could adversely 
impact our business.

Our acquisition of PictureTel could adversely impact our business.

We completed the acquisition of PictureTel in October 2001. The PictureTel
acquisition is the largest acquisition we have completed, and the complex
process of integrating PictureTel has required and will continue to require 
significant resources. Integrating PictureTel has been and will continue to be
time consuming, expensive and disruptive to our business. This integration
process has strained our financial and managerial controls and reporting
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In addition, we recently implemented a reseller and distributor certification
program. Our distributors and resellers may refuse or delay acceptance of this
program, which could cause us to lose resellers or delay our collection of
accounts receivable. If either of these results were to occur, our business and
results of operations would be harmed. 

Our revenue estimates are based largely on end-user sales reports that our
distributors and resellers provide to us on a monthly basis. To date, we believe
this data has been generally accurate in North America but less reliable 
outside of this region. To the extent that sales-out and channel inventory data
are inaccurate in either North America or outside of North America, we may
not be able to make revenue estimates for future periods or may find 
that our previous estimates were inaccurate. In addition, we will need to
incorporate the new resellers acquired as a result of the PictureTel acquisition
into this reporting process, which may take some time to complete. 

A major contributor to the expected growth of the broadband distribution 
market has been the deployment of DSL. Beginning in the second half of
2000 and continuing through 2001, DSL providers experienced delays in
delivering their service, which caused financial troubles for these companies.
These DSL providers are customers of our network access products through
original equipment manufacturers we use as resellers. These service delays
slowed the expected growth in this market, which in turn materially decreased
sales of our network access products, which decreased each quarter in 2001.
If these conditions persist, they will continue to negatively impact revenues
from our network access products. 

We are subject to risks associated with the success of the businesses of our
distributors and resellers.

Many of our distributors and resellers that carry multiple products of ours, and
from whom we derive significant revenues, are undercapitalized. The failure 
of these businesses to establish and sustain profitability or obtain financing
could have a significant negative effect on our future revenue levels and 
profitability. The current economic downturn in the United States and other
regions could cause more of our customers’ businesses to suffer or fail which
would harm our business. 

Our business would also be harmed if our large resellers were affected by the
current economic downturn. For example, Lucent Technologies, historically
one of our larger resellers, accounted for 11% of our net revenues in the three
months ended December 31, 2000, primarily related to Lucent’s purchases of
our network access products during that period. In addition, Lucent account-
ed for 10% of net revenues in both 1999 and 1998. In 2001, the amount of
orders we received from Lucent dropped significantly, which had a negative
effect on our revenues and profitability. If Lucent continues to limit its purchas-
es of our products due to the current economic downturn or any other factor,
this will continue to harm our business. 

To avoid confusion among our distributors and resellers regarding our 
product offerings, we need to devote significant resources to educating 
and training them.

When we take any significant actions regarding our product offerings, it is
important to educate and train our distributors and resellers to avoid any con-
fusion. For example, late in the first quarter of 2000, we began shipping the
ViewStation FX product. The timing of this delivery date likely created confu-
sion in our reseller customer base and end-user customer market as these
groups waited to see if this new ViewStation product was more desirable than
the existing products. Therefore, the timing of this new product release likely
had a negative effect on our 2000 first quarter sales-in to distributors and
resellers and sales-out to end-users. We cannot assure you that a similar 
situation will not happen again. 

In addition, our acquisition of PictureTel could create confusion among our
distributor and reseller customers due to potential uncertainties concerning
our and PictureTel’s product offerings. We will need to devote significant
resources to educate and train our distributors and resellers about our 
combined product offerings. The initial confusion may lead to delays in 
ordering our products, which would negatively affect our revenues. Moreover,
PictureTel sold products directly to end-users. To the extent we maintain 
direct sales relationships with such end-users, some of our relationships 
with distributors and resellers will be negatively affected. 
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Difficulties we may encounter managing a substantially larger
business could adversely affect our operating results.

We experienced significant growth in our business and operations during the
last four years, and our ability to manage this growth and any future growth 
will affect our operating results.

Our business has grown in recent years through both internal expansion 
and acquisitions, and continued growth may cause a significant strain on our
infrastructure, internal systems and managerial resources. For example, our
annual revenues increased from $52 million in 1997 to $383 million in 2001,
and during the last 12 months, we acquired Accord, Circa, PictureTel and
ASPI. Further, our headcount increased from 175 employees at December 31,
1997 to 526 employees at December 31, 1999, and to 1,269 employees at
December 31, 2001. To manage our growth effectively, we must continue to
improve and expand our infrastructure, including operating and administrative
systems and controls, and continue managing headcount, capital and
processes in an efficient manner. Our productivity and the quality of our
products may be adversely affected if we do not integrate and train our new
employees quickly and effectively and coordinate among our executive, 
engineering, finance, marketing, sales, operations and customer support
organizations, all of which add to the complexity of our organization and
increase our operating expenses. In addition, our revenues may not grow at a
sufficient rate to absorb the costs associated with a larger overall headcount.
Integrating PictureTel will complicate these tasks. For example, we are currently
converting and integrating PictureTel’s information systems with ours, which 
is a complex and time-consuming process. In addition, because of our acqui-
sition of PictureTel, our video communications product development group is
now located in multiple locations, and we have limited experience coordinating
a large, geographically separated product development group. 

In addition, our future growth may require significant additional resources. We
cannot assure you that resources will be available when we need them or that

we will have sufficient capital to fund these resource needs. Also, as we
assess our resources following our acquisitions, we will likely determine that
redundancy in certain areas will require consolidation of these resources. Any
organizational disruptions associated with the consolidation process could
require further management attention and financial expenditure. If we are
unable to manage our growth effectively, if we experience a shortfall in
resources or if we must take additional restructuring charges, our results of
operations will be harmed. 

Some of our officers and key personnel have worked together for only a short
period of time or have only recently joined us.

Some of our officers and key personnel have worked together for only a short
period of time. For example, three of our executive officers joined us within the
past twelve months. In addition, some of our executive officers have recently
assumed significant new responsibilities, and they may require some time to
transition into these new roles. 

If we fail to successfully attract and retain qualified personnel, our business 
will be harmed.

Our future success will depend in part on our continued ability to hire, 
assimilate and retain qualified personnel. Competition for such personnel 
is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting or retaining such 
personnel. The loss of any key employee, the failure of any key employee
to perform in his or her current position or our inability to attract and retain
skilled employees, particularly technical and management, as needed, could
harm our business. In addition, many of our key employees in Israel, who are
responsible for development of our network systems products, are obligated
to perform annual military reserve duty and may be called to active duty 
at any time under emergency conditions. The loss of the services of any 
executive officer or other key technical or management personnel could
harm our business. 
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systems and procedures, and has resulted in the diversion of management
and financial resources from our core business objectives. Failure to achieve
the anticipated benefits of this acquisition or to successfully integrate the
operations of PictureTel could harm our business, results of operations and
cash flows. We may not realize the benefits we anticipate from this acquisition
because of the following significant challenges: 

• expected synergy benefits from the acquisition, such as lower costs, may 
not be realized or may be realized more slowly than anticipated, particularly
with regard to costs associated with a reduction in headcount and facilities; 

• potentially incompatible cultural differences between the two companies; 
• incorporating PictureTel’s technology and products into our current and 

future product lines; 
• geographic dispersion of operations; 
• integrating PictureTel’s technical team with our engineering organizations; 
• generating market demand for an expanded product line that includes 

PC-based systems and collaboration-intensive applications; 
• integrating PictureTel’s products with our business, because we do not 

have distribution, manufacturing, marketing or support experience for 
these products; 

• some of PictureTel’s suppliers, distributors, customers and licensors 
are our competitors or work with our competitors, and as a result may 
terminate their business relationships with us; 

• the difficulty of leveraging PictureTel’s and our combined technologies and 
capabilities across all product lines and customer bases; and 

• our inability to retain previous PictureTel customers or employees. 

We have incurred and expect to continue to incur significant costs and commit
significant management time integrating PictureTel’s operations, technology,
development programs, products, information systems, customers and 
personnel. These costs have been and will likely continue to be substantial
and include costs for: 

• converting, integrating and upgrading information systems, including the 
extremely complex and time-consuming integration of data from PictureTel’s
incompatible enterprise resource planning system with our system; 

• integrating and reorganizing operations, including combining teams, 
facilities and processes in various functional areas; 

• identifying duplicative or redundant resources and facilities, developing 
plans for resource consolidation and implementing those plans; 

• fees and expenses of professionals and consultants involved in completing 
the integration process; 

• settling existing PictureTel liabilities; 
• costs associated with vacating, subleasing and closing facilities; 
• employee relocation, redeployment or severance costs; 
• integrating technology and products; and 
• other transaction costs associated with the acquisition, including financial 

advisor, attorney, accountant and financial printer fees. 

In addition to the significant costs associated with converting and integrating
PictureTel’s information systems, there are other significant risks associated
with this process. For example, while migrating PictureTel data to our informa-
tion system, we can lose such data or such data may be inaccessible to us
during the lengthy integration process. In addition, we may need to upgrade
our information systems. 

Difficulties in integrating past or future acquisitions could adversely affect 
our business.

Critical to our growth is the efficient and effective integration of our acquired
businesses into our organization. As a result, we have spent and will continue
to spend significant resources identifying and acquiring businesses. In addi-
tion to PictureTel, we acquired the following businesses in our last fiscal year:
Atlanta Signal Processors, Incorporated, or ASPI, in November 2001, Circa
Communications, Ltd., or Circa, in April 2001 and Accord Networks Ltd., or
Accord, in February 2001. These acquisitions involve numerous risks includ-
ing difficulties in integrating the operations, technologies and products of the
acquired companies, the diversion of our management’s attention from other
business concerns and the potential loss of key employees of the acquired
companies. Failure to achieve the anticipated benefits of these acquisitions or
to successfully integrate the operations of ASPI, Circa or Accord could also
harm our business, results of operations and cash flows. 

We may make additional acquisitions in the future. Failure to achieve the
anticipated benefits of any future acquisition could also harm our business,
results of operations and cash flows. Additionally, we cannot assure you that
we will not incur material charges in future quarters to reflect additional costs
associated with any future acquisitions we may make. 
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The technology used to develop our current network systems products was
developed in part with grants from the Israeli Office of the Chief Scientist.
Under Israeli law, technology developed pursuant to grants from the Office 
of the Chief Scientist cannot be transferred to any person without the prior
written consent of the Office of the Chief Scientist. The grants also contain
restrictions on the ability to manufacture products developed with these
grants outside of Israel. Approval to manufacture such products outside of
Israel, if granted, is generally subject to an increase in the total amount to be
repaid to the Office of the Chief Scientist of between 120% to 300% of the
amount granted, depending on the extent of the manufacturing to be conduct-
ed outside of Israel. These restrictions on the ability to transfer certain of our
technology to third parties or manufacture products outside Israel may
adversely affect our operating results and the development of additional net-
work systems products and significantly reduce the value of the technology. 

International sales represent an increasing portion or our net revenue, and
risks inherent in international sales could harm our business.

International sales represent an increasing portion of our net revenues, and
we anticipate that international sales will continue to account for a significant
portion of our net revenues for the foreseeable future. International sales are
subject to certain inherent risks, including the following: 

• unexpected changes in regulatory requirements and tariffs; 
• difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations; 
• longer payment cycles; 
• problems in collecting accounts receivable; 
• potentially adverse tax consequences; and 
• potential foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. 

Also, poor economic conditions overseas can adversely impact our business,
as those in Europe did in 2001, and these conditions are expected to continue
in 2002. Additionally, international net revenues may fluctuate as a percentage
of total net revenues in the future as we introduce new products. These 

fluctuations are primarily the result of our practice of introducing new products
in North America first and the additional time required for product homologa-
tion and regulatory approvals of new products in international markets. To 
the extent we are unable to expand international sales in a timely and cost-
effective manner, our business could be harmed. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to maintain or increase international market demand for our
products. 

Although, to date, a substantial majority of our international sales has been
denominated in U.S. currency, we expect that a growing number of sales will
be denominated in non-U.S. currencies in the near future because PictureTel
has traditionally accepted a wide variety of currencies in its international sales.
As a result, we expect our business will be significantly more vulnerable to
currency fluctuations, which could adversely impact our results of operations.
Moreover, as a result of our increased exposure to currency fluctuations, we
are likely to begin engaging in currency hedging activities. However, we have
limited experience with these hedging activities, and they may not be suc-
cessful, which could harm our operating results and financial condition. 

We have limited supply sources for some key components of our 
products, and our operations could be harmed by supply interrup-
tions, component defects or unavailability of these components.

Some key components used in our products are currently available from only
one source and others are available from only a limited number of sources,
including some key integrated circuits and optical elements. We also obtain
certain plastic housings, metal castings and other components from suppliers
located in China and other Southeast Asia countries, and any political or eco-
nomic instability in that region in the future, or future import restrictions, may-
cause delays or an inability to obtain these supplies. We have no raw material
supply commitments from our suppliers and generally purchase components
on a purchase order basis either directly or through our contract manufacturers.
We and our contract manufacturers have had limited experience purchasing
volume supplies of various components for our products, and some of the
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If we fail to compete successfully, our business and results of
operations would be significantly harmed.

We face significant competition in the broadband communications industry,
which is subject to rapid technological change. In video communications, 
our major competitors include Aethra, ClearOne Communications, formerly
Gentner, NEC, Panasonic, Philips, Viseon, formerly RSI, Sony, Sun
Microsystems, Tandberg, VCON and VTEL, as well as various smaller or 
new industry entrants such as Broadband Networks, Imagecom, Motion
Media Technology, RoseTel System, Videra and Zydacron. Many of these
companies have substantial financial resources and production, marketing,
engineering and other capabilities with which to develop, manufacture, market
and sell their products. In addition, with advances in telecommunications 
standards, connectivity and video processing technology and the increasing
market acceptance of video communications, other established or new 
companies may develop or market products competitive with our video 
communications products. We believe we will face increasing competition
from alternative video communications solutions that employ new technolo-
gies or new combinations of technologies from companies such as 3Com,
Cisco Systems, Compaq, Dell, MeetingOne, Microsoft, Nortel Networks,
RealNetworks or WebEx, that enable web-based or network-based video 
communications with low-cost digital camera systems. The market for voice
communications equipment, particularly voiceconferencing products, is highly
competitive and also subject to rapid technological change, regulatory devel-
opments and emerging industry standards. We expect competition to persist
and increase in the future in this area. In voice communications, our major
competitors include ClearOne Communications, NEC, SoundGear and other
companies that offer lower cost, full-duplex speakerphones such as Lucent
Technologies and Hello Direct. Hello Direct, one of our resellers, offers a 
competitive product under the Hello Direct name through an OEM relationship
with ClearOne Communications. Most of these companies have substantial
financial resources and production, marketing, engineering and other capabili-
ties with which to develop, manufacture, market and sell their products. In
addition, all major telephony manufacturers produce hands-free speaker-
phone units that are lower cost than our voice communications products. 
Our network access products face significant competition from 3Com,
ADTRAN, Netopia and Siemens, and our network systems business has 

significant competition from Avaya, Cisco Systems, Ezenia! and RADVISION.
Our network systems revenue is heavily dependent on purchases by our
video product competitors. If these network systems’ customers decide to
reduce their purchases due to this or other potential competition, it will harm
our business. 

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully against
our current or future competitors. We expect our competitors to continue to
improve the performance of their current products and to introduce new prod-
ucts or new technologies that provide improved performance characteristics.
New product introductions by our competitors could cause a significant
decline in sales or loss of market acceptance of our existing products and
future products. We believe that the possible effects from ongoing competition
may be the reduction in the prices of our products and our competitors’ prod-
ucts or the introduction of additional lower priced competitive products. We
expect this increased competitive pressure may lead to intensified price-based
competition, resulting in lower prices and gross margins which would signifi-
cantly harm our results of operations. 

We face risks related to our international operations and sales.

Because of our significant operations in Israel, we are subject to risks 
associated with the political and regulatory environment in Israel.

The principal research and development and manufacturing facilities of our
network systems group and many of that group’s suppliers are located in
Israel. Political, economic and military conditions in Israel directly affect our
network systems group’s operations. Since the establishment of the State of
Israel in 1948, a number of armed conflicts have taken place between Israel
and its Arab neighbors. Current and future-armed conflicts or political instabili-
ty in the region may impair our ability to produce and sell our network sys-
tems products and could disrupt research or developmental activities. A state
of hostility, varying in degree and intensity, has led to security and economic
problems for Israel. The future of peace efforts between Israel and its Arab
neighbors remains uncertain, and in recent months there has been a marked
increase in civil unrest and hostility between Israelis and Palestinians. This
hostility could have an adverse impact on our results of operations. 
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Scientist. The grants also contain restrictions on the ability to manufacture
products developed with these grants outside of Israel. Approval to manufac-
ture such products outside of Israel, if granted, is generally subject to an
increase in the total amount to be repaid to the Office of the Chief Scientist of
between 120% to 300% of the amount granted, depending on the extent of
the manufacturing to be conducted outside of Israel. These restrictions on the
ability to transfer technology to third parties or manufacture products outside
Israel may adversely affect our operating results and significantly reduce the
value of the technology developed under these grants. 

We face risks associated with our products and 
product development.

We may experience delays in product introductions and our products may 
contain defects, which could adversely affect market acceptance for these
products and our reputation and seriously harm our results of operations.

From 1998 through 2001, our revenue growth was due in large part to sales 
of new video communications products. Although we intend to continue to
introduce new products, such as our Visual Concert products, SoundStation
IP 3000, VoiceStation 100, SoundPoint IP 400, PathNavigator and WebOffice
products, we cannot assure you that new product releases will be timely or
that they will be made at all. In fact, the ViewStation FX and ViaVideo were
delayed from their original release dates, which we believe negatively affected
our net revenues in 2000. Additionally, any new or existing product introductions
may contain defects and may not produce the revenue growth we experienced
in 1999 and 2000. 

With our acquisition of PictureTel, our video communications product develop-
ment group is now located in Massachusetts and Texas. Since we do not
have significant experience coordinating a large geographically separated
product development group, we may experience product delays in the future,
due to communications, logistics or other issues. Similarly, our acquisition of
ASPI, may contribute to audio communications product delays, as our audio
communications product development group is now dispersed among
California, Georgia and Canada. 

In the past, we have experienced other delays in the introduction of certain
new products and enhancements, and we believe that such delays may occur
in the future. For instance, we experienced delays in introducing the
ViewStation MP and WebStation in 1998 from their original expected release
dates due to unforeseen technology and manufacturing ramping issues.
Similar delays occurred during the introduction of the ShowStation IP,
SoundStation Premier, and ShowStation, which affected the first customer
ship dates of these products. We also had delays in introducing our
SoundStation IP product, which we believe negatively impacted our sales rev-
enue in the first quarter of 2001. Further, our SoundPoint IP product introduc-
tion was delayed and impacted our sales in the third and fourth quarters of
2001. Also, in the past, PictureTel has experienced delays in new product
introductions, including a significant delay in the release of its iPower product,
which adversely impacted PictureTel’s revenues. Any similar delays in the
future for other new product offerings could adversely affect market accept-
ance for these products and our reputation, and seriously harm our results of
operations.

We face risks related to the deployment of broadband communications 
services and the adoption rate of new technologies.

The success of our network access product line is dependent on the continued
deployment of broadband services such as digital subscriber line, or DSL, 
by service providers. Beginning in the second half of 2000, the market for
broadband services experienced a severe downturn, characterized by finan-
cial troubles for many telecommunications service providers and delays in
delivering broadband services. This downturn has negatively impacted sales
of our network access products. For example, during the three months ended
December 31, 2001, we generated $1.3 million in network access product 
revenues compared to $15.1 million in the comparable period in 2000.
Moreover, given the lack of demand for our network access products, this
product line is currently unprofitable and generating negative gross margins. 
If the market for broadband services does not improve, our network access
product line will continue to under perform, and we may restructure or 
dispose of this product line, which could result in financial charges and
disruption to our business. 
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components included in our products, such as microprocessors and other
integrated circuits, have from time to time been subject to limited allocations
by suppliers. In the event that we, or our contract manufacturers, are unable
to obtain sufficient supplies of components or develop alternative sources as
needed, our operating results could be seriously harmed. For example, in
2000, we encountered some development delays and component shortages
relating to our network access products, and if similar conditions were to
occur, our business would suffer. Moreover, our operating results would be
seriously harmed by receipt of a significant number of defective components,
an increase in component prices or our inability to obtain lower component
prices in response to competitive price reductions. Additionally, our video
communications products are designed based on integrated circuits produced
by Philips Semiconductor, or Philips, and cameras produced by Sony. If we
could no longer obtain integrated circuits or cameras from these suppliers, 
we would incur substantial expense and take substantial time in redesigning
our products to be compatible with components from other manufacturers,
and we cannot assure you that we would be successful in obtaining these
components from alternative sources in a timely or cost-effective manner.
Additionally, both Sony and Philips compete with us in the video communica-
tions industry, which may adversely affect our ability to obtain necessary 
components. The failure to obtain adequate supplies of vital components
could prevent or delay product shipments, which could harm our business.
We also rely on the introduction schedules of some key components in the
development or launch of new products. Any delays in the availability of 
these key components could harm our business. 

Manufacturing disruption or capacity constraints would 
harm our business.

We subcontract the manufacture of our SoundStation, SoundStation Premier,
SoundPoint Pro, ViewStation, ViaVideo, iPower 900 series and our NetEngine
access products to Celestica, a third-party contract manufacturer. We use
Celestica’s Thailand facilities, and should there be any disruption in services
due to natural disaster or economic or political difficulties in Thailand or Asia
or any other reason, such disruption would harm our business and results of
operations. Also, Celestica’s Thailand facility is currently the sole source 
manufacturer of these products, and if Celestica experiences an interruption in
operations or otherwise suffers from capacity constraints, we would experience

a delay in shipping these products. Further, we subcontract the manufacture
of our VoIP phones to Unico’s Malaysia facilities and our iPower 600 series 
to Sharp’s Japan facilities. If Unico or Sharp experiences an interruption in
operations or otherwise suffers from capacity constraints, we would also
experience a delay in shipping these respective products. As a result, we may
not be able to meet any demand for our products, which could negatively
affect revenues in the quarter of the disruption and harm our reputation. In
addition, operating in the international environment exposes us to certain
inherent risks, including unexpected changes in regulatory requirements and
tariffs, difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations and potentially
adverse tax consequences, all of which could harm our business and results
of operations. 

We subcontract the manufacturing of our iPower 600 Series product to Sharp
Electronics Corporation, or Sharp. The iPower 600 Series product also contains
Sharp technology, and if we subsequently decide to transfer the manufacturing
of this product from Sharp to another manufacturer, we would have to reach
an alternate design solution that does not include the Sharp technology. Any
such alternate design could be time-consuming and expensive to develop,
and could result in manufacturing and shipment delays, increased manufac-
turing costs and reseller and end-user customer dissatisfaction. In addition,
we are currently in the process of transferring the manufacturing of the iPower
900 Series product and various ASPI products from their current contract
manufacturers to Celestica. During the transition period we could experience
manufacturing and shipment delays, increased manufacturing costs and
reseller and end-user customer dissatisfaction. This further concentrates 
our product manufacturing in Celestica’s Thailand facility and increases our
exposure to adverse financial consequences in the event of a disruption in
Celestica’s manufacturing capabilities for any reason. 

Further, our network systems products are manufactured in Israel, which is
currently experiencing internal and external conflicts that include terrorist and
military action. We could experience a manufacturing disruption due to acts
associated with this conflict which could harm our business. In addition, 
certain technology used in our network systems products was developed
through grants from the Office of the Chief Scientist in Israel. Under Israeli law,
it is prohibited to transfer technology developed pursuant to these grants to
any person without the prior written consent of the Office of the Chief 
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impairment of some of these investments. For example, we recorded charges
of $5.9 million in fiscal 2000 and $3.2 million in fiscal 2001 associated with 
the impairment of these investments. Due to these and other factors, we have
previously determined, and may in the future determine, that the value of
these investments is impaired, which has caused and would cause us to write
down the stated value of these investments. Further, we cannot assure you
that future inventory, investment, license, fixed asset or other asset write-
downs will not happen. If future write-downs do occur, they could harm our
business and results of operations. 

Failure to adequately service and support our products could harm our results
of operations.

Our recent growth has been due in large part to an expansion into products
with more complex technologies, including our network access products, our
network systems products and our iPower products. This has increased the
need for product warranty and service capabilities. If we cannot develop and
train our internal support organization or maintain our relationship with our
outside technical support, it could harm our business. 

If we have insufficient proprietary rights or if we fail to protect
those rights we have, our business would be materially impaired.

We rely on third party license agreements and termination or impairment of
these agreements may cause delays or reductions in product introductions 
or shipments which would harm our business.

We have licensing agreements with various suppliers for software incorporated
into our products. For example, we license video communications source
code from ADTRAN, EBSNet, Omnitel, RADVISION and Telesoft, video algorithm
protocols from Ezenia! and Real Networks, development source code from
Cisco Systems and Philips Semiconductor, audio algorithms from Lucent
Technologies, Nortel Networks and Texas Instruments, communication software
from DataBeam and Windows software from Microsoft. In addition, we have
interoperability agreements with Jetstream Communications and Tollbridge
Technologies for our network access products, and we depend significantly
on these agreements and our ability to secure similar licenses from other
gateway providers. These third-party software licenses may not continue to 
be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. The termination

or impairment of these licenses could result in delays or reductions in new
product introductions or current product shipments until equivalent software
could be developed, licensed and integrated, if at all possible, which would
harm our business and results of operations. 

We rely on patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets to 
protect our proprietary rights, which may not be sufficient to protect 
our intellectual property.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret
laws and confidentiality procedures to protect our proprietary rights. Others
may independently develop similar proprietary information and techniques 
or gain access to our intellectual property rights or disclose such technology.
In addition, we cannot assure you that any patent or registered trademark
owned by us will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged in the U.S. or
foreign countries or that the rights granted thereunder will provide competitive
advantages to us or that any of our pending or future patent applications will
be issued with the scope of the claims sought by us, if at all. Furthermore,
others may develop similar products, duplicate our products or design around
our patents. In addition, foreign intellectual property laws may not protect our
intellectual property rights. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our patents
and other intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to determine
the validity of and scope of the proprietary rights of others, or to defend against
claims of infringement or invalidity. Litigation could result in substantial costs
and diversion of resources which could harm our business, and could ultimately
be unsuccessful in protecting our intellectual property rights. 

We face and might in the future face intellectual property infringement claims
that might be costly to resolve.

We have from time to time received, and may in the future receive, communi-
cations from third parties asserting patent or other intellectual property rights
covering our products. For example, we have been named in (along with
approximately 90 manufacturers or distributors of electronic or semiconductor
products) and served with a complaint filed by the Lemelson Medical, Education
and Research Foundation alleging patent infringement by us. This suit has
been stayed pending the outcome of a different suit filed against the
Lemelson Foundation. 
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We have invested significant resources developing products that are depend-
ent on the adoption rate of new technologies. For example, our SoundStation
IP and SoundPoint IP products are dependent on the roll out of voice-over-IP,
or VoIP, technologies. The success of our ViaVideo product depends on the
increased use of desktop video collaboration technologies. If the use of new
technologies that our current and future products are based on does not
occur, or occurs more slowly than expected, we may not be able to sell cer-
tain of our products in significant volumes and our business may be harmed. 

Lower than expected market acceptance of our products, price competition
and other price decreases would negatively impact our business.

If our products are not accepted by the market, our profitability could be
harmed. For example, we lowered the price of the ShowStation IP by 23%
effective March 1999 because of market acceptance issues for this product.
Similar price reductions and demand issues could occur for any of our 
products, which could negatively impact our net revenues and profitability. 

Our profitability could also be negatively affected in the future as a result of
continuing competitive price pressures in the sale of video and voice confer-
encing equipment, network systems and network access products, which
could cause us to reduce the prices for any of these products. Further, we
have reduced prices in the past in order to expand the market for our prod-
ucts, and in the future, we may further reduce prices or introduce new prod-
ucts that carry lower margins in order to expand the market or stimulate
demand for our products. While we cannot assure you that these actions
would have the desired result, any of these actions could have an adverse
impact on our product margins and profitability. 

Our success depends on our ability to assimilate new technologies in our
products and to properly train our resellers in the use of those products.

The markets for video and voice communications products, network systems
products and network access products are characterized by rapidly changing
technology, evolving industry standards and frequent new product introduc-
tions. The success of our new products depends on several factors, including
proper new product definition, product cost, timely completion and introduc-
tion of new products, differentiation of new products from those of our 
competitors and market acceptance of these products. Additionally, properly
addressing the complexities associated with compatibility issues, reseller
training, technical and sales support as well as field support are also factors

that may affect our success in this market. Further, the shift in communications
from circuit-switched to IP-based technologies over time may require us to
add new resellers and gain new core technological competencies. We are
attempting to address these needs and the need to develop new products
through our internal development efforts, joint developments with other 
companies and through acquisitions. We may not identify successful new
product opportunities and develop and bring products to market in a timely
manner. Additionally, we cannot assure you that competing technologies
developed by others will not render our products or technologies obsolete 
or noncompetitive. The failure of our new product development efforts and
any inability to service or maintain the necessary third-party interoperability
licenses would harm our business and results of operations. 

Product obsolescence, excess inventory and other asset impairment can 
negatively affect our results of operations.

We operate in a high technology industry which is subject to rapid and frequent
technology and market demand changes. These changes can often render
existing technologies obsolete. These obsolescence issues can require
write-downs in inventory value when it is determined that the stated value of
existing inventory is greater than its fair market value. This situation occurred
in all of 2001 when we recorded material excess and obsolescence charges
associated with our inventory of network access products. This situation also
occurred during the first quarter of 2000 for the ShowStation IP. If the deploy-
ment of DSL is further delayed or never materializes, our current level of net-
work access product inventory may be deemed excessive, and we may have
to write down much or all of this inventory, which could adversely affect our
profitability. Also, our ViewStation product and iPower products offer certain
comparable functionality and may compete with each other for customers. 
If sales of one of these products has a negative effect on sales of the other
product, it could significantly increase the inventory levels of the negatively
impacted product. The potential for new products to render existing products
obsolete, cause inventories of existing products to increase or reduce the
demand for existing products exists for every one of our products. 

In addition, we have made investments in private companies which we 
classify as “Other long-term assets” in our balance sheet. The value of these
investments is influenced by many factors, including the operating effective-
ness of these companies, the overall health of these companies’ industries,
the strength of the private equity markets and general market conditions. In
the past, we have recorded charges against earnings associated with the 
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In addition, the stock market has recently experienced extreme price and 
volume fluctuations. These fluctuations have had a substantial effect on the
market prices for many high technology companies like us. These fluctuations
are often unrelated to the operating performance of the specific companies. 

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to
our investment portfolio and bank borrowings and our investment portfolio
mainly includes highly liquid, high quality instruments. 

We are subject to fluctuating interest rates that may impact, adversely or 
otherwise, our results of operations or cash flows for our cash and cash 
equivalents, available-for-sale securities and variable rate bank borrowings. 

The table below presents principal amounts and related weighted average
interest rates by year of maturity for our investment portfolio and debt 
obligations: 

As of December 31, 2001:

EXPECTED MATURITY

2004 AND
(in thousands, except interest rates) 2002 2003 BEYOND TOTAL

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $126,832 — — $126,832  

Average interest rates 2.06% — — 2.06%
Short-term and 
long-term investments $ 50,432 $31,886 $ — $ 82,318  

Average interest rates 4.12% 3.51% — 3.89%  

Liabilities:
Bank line of credit — — — —  

Average interest rates* 2.65% — — 2.65%  

* (30-day average Libor + .65%) 

The estimated fair value of our cash and cash equivalents approximates the
principal amounts reflected above based on the short maturities of these
financial instruments. We also hold approximately $9.7 million in investments 

in publicly traded equity securities which have been marked to market from
our original $9.5 million investment value. 

We have made investments in private companies which we classify as “Other
long-term assets” in our balance sheet. The value of these investments is
influenced by many factors, including the operating effectiveness of these
companies, the overall health of these companies’ industries, the strength of
the private equity markets and general market conditions. In the past, we have
recorded charges against earnings associated with the impairment of some of
these investments. For example, we recorded charges of $5.9 million in fiscal
2000 and $3.2 million in fiscal 2001 associated with the impairment of these
investments. For all of these investments, our ownership is less than 20% of
the company, and we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence
over their operations. 

A majority of our sales are denominated in US dollars. Only a minor amount 
of foreign bills are paid in currencies other than the US dollar and these bills
are funded at the time of payment. However, in connection with the acquisition
of PictureTel completed in October 2001, we are now selling iPower products
and related services in local currencies, which will increase our foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuation risk. We may also decide to expand the type of
products we sell in foreign currencies thereby further increasing our foreign
exchange risk. 

In the event of a significant transaction due in a foreign currency, we may
enter into a foreign currency forward exchange contract for hedging purposes.
During the third quarter, we entered into such a contract with an aggregate
face value of $2.8 million to mitigate exposure to a receivable in a foreign 
currency. The contract matured during the third quarter and did not have a
material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows. 

In connection with the acquisition of PictureTel completed in October 2001,
we assumed PictureTel’s existing hedging program to hedge intercompany
receivables between PictureTel and its foreign subsidiaries. There were seven
open foreign currency forward exchange contracts ranging from sixty to ninety
days at the date of the acquisition with a total value of $1.6 million. All seven
contracts matured during the fourth quarter of 2001 and did not have a material
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash
flows. Two additional contracts were entered during the month of December
2001 for $1.7 million and remained outstanding as of December 31, 2001. 
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In addition, our industry is characterized by uncertain and conflicting intellectual
property claims and vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property
rights or positions, which have on occasion resulted in significant and often
protracted and expensive litigation. In the past, we have been involved in 
such litigation, which adversely affected our operating results. For example, 
in November 1998, Videoserver, Inc., now known as Ezenia! Inc., filed a
patent infringement claim against Accord’s U.S. subsidiary, and Accord was
subsequently added as a defendant. In September 2000, Accord and its U.S.
subsidiary entered into a settlement agreement with Ezenia! under which the
case was dismissed and Accord paid $6.5 million to Ezenia!. We cannot
assure you that we will prevail in any such litigation, that intellectual property
claims will not be made against us in the future or that we will not be prohibited
from using the technologies subject to any such claims or be required to obtain
licenses and make corresponding royalty payments. In addition, the neces-
sary management attention to, and legal costs associated with, litigation can
have a significant adverse effect on operating results and financial condition.

Business interruptions could adversely affect our operations.

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption by fire, earthquake, power loss,
telecommunications failure, national catastrophe, such as the terrorist attacks
which occurred on September 11, 2001, and other events beyond our control.
We do not have a detailed disaster recovery plan. Our facilities located in
California were recently subject to electrical blackouts as a consequence of a
shortage of available electrical power. In the event these blackouts continue or
increase in severity, they could disrupt the operations of our affected facilities. In
addition, we do not carry sufficient business interruption insurance to compen-
sate us for losses that may occur and any losses or damages incurred by us
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our cash flow could fluctuate due to our ability to collect 
receivables.

Over the past several quarters, we initiated significant investments in Europe
and Asia to expand our business in these regions. In Europe and Asia, as with
other international regions, credit terms are typically longer than in the United
States. Therefore, as Europe, Asia and other international regions grow as a
percentage of our net revenues, as happened in 1999, 2000 and 2001,
accounts receivable balances will likely increase as compared to previous
years. Additionally, sales in the network access, network systems and video
communications industries typically have longer payment periods as com-

pared to the voice communications market. Therefore, if network access, net-
work systems and video products constitute a greater percentage of net rev-
enues, accounts receivable balances will likely increase. These increases
would cause our days sales outstanding to increase as compared to prior
years and will negatively affect future cash flows. Although we have been able
to largely offset the effects of these influences through additional incentives
offered to resellers at the end of each quarter in the form of prepaid discounts,
these additional incentives have lowered our profitability and, given the down-
turn in the United States economy, many companies are opting to not take
advantage of our incentives and instead preserve their liquidity. In addition,
the economic downturn in the United States may restrict the availability of
capital which may delay our collections from our resellers beyond our histori-
cal experience, which would further harm our cash flow and days sales out-
standing performance. Also, as we transition PictureTel’s resellers from
PictureTel’s credit policies to our credit policies, these resellers may find our
policies to be more stringent. As a result, there may be some delay or confu-
sion in the implementation of our credit policies with such resellers, which
could result in delayed collection of receivables. Further, our more stringent
credit policies could limit the ability of these resellers to pay for our products,
which could result in reduced sales of our products to these resellers. Finally,
some of these resellers may be unwilling or unable to meet our credit terms,
and they may decide to terminate their relationship with us. 

Our stock price fluctuates as a result of the conduct of our 
business and stock market fluctuations.

The market price of our common stock has experienced significant fluctua-
tions and may continue to fluctuate significantly. The market price of our 
common stock may be significantly affected by a variety of factors, including: 

• statements or changes in opinions, ratings or earnings estimates made by 
brokerage firms or industry analysts relating to the market in which we do 
business or relating to us specifically; 

• the announcement of new products or product enhancements by us or 
our competitors; 

• technological innovations by us or our competitors; 
• quarterly variations in our results of operations; 
• general market conditions or market conditions specific to particular 

industries; and 
• domestic and international macroeconomic factors. 
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DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2001 2000

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $126,832 $ 189,399
Short-term investments 23,348 52,399
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,816 

and $2,588 in 2001 and 2000, respectively 89,309 75,653 
Inventories 48,173 49,971 
Deferred taxes 49,941 26,623  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,646 11,283  

Total current assets 352,249 405,328  
Fixed assets, net 28,945 22,046  
Long-term investments 68,682 53,543  
Goodwill and purchased intangibles, net 347,063 —  
Noncurrent deferred taxes 15,184 2,811 
Other long-term assets 9,042 19,980  

Total assets $ 821,165 $ 503,708 
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:    
Accounts payable $  31,418 $   33,614 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 9,864 8,770 
Taxes payable 24,053 16,188 
Deferred revenue 20,878 4,564 
Other accrued liabilities 64,387 16,223 

Total current liabilities 150,600 79,359  
Long-term liabilities 26,579 1,566 

Total liabilities 177,179 80,925
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10) — — 
Stockholders’ equity:    

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value:
Authorized: 5,000,000 shares in 2001 and 2000
Issued and outstanding: none in 2001 and 2000 — — 

Common stock, $0.0005 par value:
Authorized: 175,000,000 shares
Issued: 91,475,974 shares in 2001 and 81,968,988 shares in 2000;
outstanding 91,112,417 shares in 2001 and 81,968,988 shares in 2000 46 41  

Additional paid-in capital 641,298 380,975 
Cumulative other comprehensive income (loss) 328 (63)  
Unearned stock-based compensation (1,244) (610)  
Treasury stock, at cost, 363,557 shares in 2001 and none in 2000 (11,182) — 
Retained earnings 14,740 42,440

Total stockholders’ equity 643,986 422,783
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $821,165 $ 503,708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Polycom, Inc.: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Polycom, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial state-
ment schedule presents fairly, in all material aspects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
January 23, 2002

Report of Independent Accountants Consolidated Balance Sheets
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CUMULATIVE
ADDITIONAL UNEARNED OTHER RETAINED

COMMON STOCK PAID-IN STOCK-BASED TREASURY COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
(in thousands, except share data) SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL COMPENSATION STOCK INCOME (LOSS) (DEFICIT) TOTAL

Balances, January 1, 1999 62,586,587 $31 $  65,461 $     — $      — $ — $(24,637) $ 40,855  
Comprehensive income:

Change in unrealized loss on marketable securities — — — — — (85) — (85)
Net income — — — — — — 29,717 29,717
Total comprehensive income 29,632         

Issuance of stock through exercise of warrants 4,000,000 2 14,998 — — — — 15,000
Exercise of stock options under stock option plan 2,393,221 1 4,752 — — — — 4,753  
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase plan 274,310 — 1,039 — — — — 1,039  
Cost of registration statements — — (31) — — — — (31)  
Valuation of options granted to outside consultants — — 114 — — — — 114 
Unearned stock-based compensation — — 2,400 (2,400) — — — —  
Amortization of stock-based compensation — — — 447 — — — 447  
Tax benefit from stock option activity — — 9,104 — — — — 9,104  
Dividend to S-Corporation shareholders — — — — — — (103) (103)        

Balances, December 31, 1999 69,254,118 $34 $  97,837 $(1,953) $ — $ (85) $  4,977 $100,810

Comprehensive income:          
Change in unrealized loss on marketable securities — — — — — 22 — 22
Net income — — — — — — 37,463 37,463
Total comprehensive income 37,485

Issuance of stock, net of issuance costs 5,184,323 3 203,235 — — — — 203,238
Conversion of mandatorily redeemable preferred stock into common stock 3,693,761 2 27,079 — — — — 27,081
Issuance of stock related to exercise of warrants 324,833 — — — — — — — 
Exercise of stock options under stock option plan 3,288,859 2 12,531 — — — — 12,533 
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase plan 223,094 — 2,433 — — — — 2,433 
Cost of registration statements — — (85) — — — — (85)  
Valuation of options granted to outside consultants — — 122 — — — — 122  
Reversal of unearned stock-based compensation upon termination of employment — — (498) 498 — — — —  
Amortization of stock-based compensation — — — 845 — — — 845
Tax benefit from stock option activity — — 38,321 — — — — 38,321

Balances, December 31, 2000 81,968,988 $41 $380,975 $   (610) $      — $ (63) $ 42,440 $422,783

Comprehensive loss:          
Change in unrealized gain on marketable securities — — — — — 555 — 555  
Cumulative translation adjustment — — — — — (164) — (164)  
Net loss — — — — — — (27,700) (27,700)        
Total comprehensive loss (27,309)        

Issuance of stock for purchase acquisitions 6,937,355 4 230,404 (1,534) — — — 228,874  
Exercise of stock options under stock option plan 2,399,381 1 13,442 — — — — 13,443 
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase plan 170,250 — 3,871 — — — — 3,871  
Purchase of treasury stock shares at cost (363,557) — — — (11,182) — — (11,182)  
Cost of registration statements — — (189) — — — — (189)  
Stock-based compensation — — 661 — — — — 661  
Reversal of unearned stock-based compensation upon termination of employment — — (343) 343 — — — —  
Amortization of stock-based compensation — — — 557 — — — 557  
Tax benefit from stock option activity — — 12,477 — — — — 12,477         

Balances, December 31, 2001 91,112,417 $46 $641,298 $(1,244) $(11,182) $328 $ 14,740 $643,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999

Net revenues $ 383,189 $ 373,554 $ 224,902
Cost of net revenues 166,747 164,099 99,698

Gross profit 216,442 209,455 125,204
Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 74,653 70,745 43,366
Research and development 59,416 43,570 25,724
General and administrative 21,564 20,702 12,729
Acquisition-related costs 24,077 4,768 1,650
Purchased in-process research and development 52,642 — —
Amortization of goodwill and purchased intangibles 6,019 — —
Grant repayment — 5,876 —
Litigation settlement — 6,500 —
Litigation reserve release — (1,843) —

Total operating expenses 238,371 150,318 83,469
Operating income (loss) (21,929) 59,137 41,735

Interest income, net 12,755 8,419 1,629
Other investments adjustment (3,178) (5,854) —
Other income (expense) (608) 8 (31)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (12,960) 61,710 43,333
Provision for income taxes 14,740 24,247 13,616

Net income (loss) $ (27,700) $  37,463 $  29,717 

Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.33) $      0.50 $      0.45
Diluted net income (loss) per share $   (0.33) $      0.45 $      0.38

Shares used in basic per share calculation 85,123 75,264 65,475
Shares used in diluted per share calculation 85,123 83,828 77,848  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
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1. Formation and Business of the Company:

Polycom, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company), a Delaware corporation, devel-
ops, manufactures, markets and services a comprehensive line of high-quality,
easy-to-use communications equipment that enables enterprise users to more
effectively conduct video, voice and data communications. The Company’s
products are distributed and serviced globally. The Company sells its products
through marketing and sales relationships with a wide network of value-added
resellers, telecommunications equipment distributors, wireline equipment
manufacturers, telecommunication service providers and retailers. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Fiscal Year:

The Company uses a 52-53 week fiscal year. As a result, a fiscal year may not
end as of the same day as the calendar year. For convenience of presentation,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been shown as
ending on December 31 of each applicable period. 

Reclassifications:

Certain items in prior year’s consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to current year’s format. 

Principles of Accounting and Consolidation: 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. The consolidated financial statements of
the Company have been prepared to give retroactive effect to the merger with
Accord Networks Ltd. on February 28, 2001 which was treated as a pooling of
interests for financial reporting purposes. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original or remaining
maturities of 90 days or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Investments:

The Company’s investments are comprised of U.S., state and municipal 
government obligations and foreign and domestic public corporate debt 
and equity securities. Investments with maturities of less than one year are
considered short-term and are carried at fair value. Nearly all investments are
held in the Company’s name at a limited number of major financial institutions.
The specific identification method is used to determine the cost of securities
disposed of, with realized gains and loses reflected in interest income, net. 
At December 31, 2001 and 2000, all of the Company’s investments were 
classified as available-for-sale. Unrealized gains and losses on these 
investments are included as a separate component of cumulative other 
comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. 

The Company also has investments in private companies. These investments
are included in “Other long-term assets” in the Company’s consolidated 
balance sheets and are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The
Company monitors these investments for impairment and makes appropriate
reductions in carrying value when the fair value is determined to be less than
the reported value. During 2001 and 2000, the Company determined that the
value of these investments was impaired and reduced the carrying amount 
by $3.2 million and $5.9 million, respectively. 
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ (27,700) $  37,463 $29,717
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 23,718 9,406 5,023
Provision for doubtful accounts 948 1,739 771
Provision for excess and obsolete inventories 8,394 3,101 4,958
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 12,477 38,321 9,104
Other investments loss adjustment 3,178 5,854 —
Amortization of stock-based compensation 557 956 578
Purchased in-process research and development 52,642 — —
Loss on asset dispositions 933 — 14
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effect of acquisitions:     

Trade receivables 16,616 (23,855) (24,881)
Inventories 11,738 (32,150) (6,413)
Deferred taxes 9,033 (18,829) (8,011)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,792) (6,343) (2,901)
Accounts payable (1,369) 4,961 15,127
Taxes payable 266 6,555 8,228
Accrued liabilities (30,950) 10,916 6,740

Net cash provided by operating activities 76,689 38,095 38,054
Cash flows from investing activities:     

Acquisition of fixed assets (12,759) (18,267) (8,598)
Purchase of licenses (300) (9,249) —
Purchase of investments (190,831) (142,189) (44,735)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 211,657 60,134 10,268
Purchase of convertible note receivable (41,500) — —
Net cash paid in purchase acquisitions (121,852) — —
Purchase of trademark (1,000) — 612

Net cash used in investing activities (156,585) (109,571) (42,453)
Cash flows from financing activities:     

Proceeds from stock offering, net of issuance costs — 203,238 —  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 17,329 14,903 5,744  
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs — 995 5,805  
Proceeds from exercise of warrants — — 15,000  
Dividends paid to S-Corporation shareholders — — (103)  
Repayment of stockholder notes receivable, net — — 250  

Net cash provided by financing activities 17,329 219,136 26,696  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (62,567) 147,660 22,297  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 189,399 41,739 19,442  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $126,832 $189,399 $41,739

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest $      152 $        63 $    110  
Income taxes paid $      736 $      337 $  4,340  
Advertising barter trade credits $        — $        — $ (770)  

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing:
Capital leases $        — $        — $      34  
Conversion of preferred shares to common stock $        — $  27,081 $      —  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Income Taxes:

Income tax expense is based on pre-tax financial accounting income. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts 
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to 
be realized. 

Translation of Foreign Currencies:

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries that operate
where the functional currency is the U.S. dollar are translated to U.S dollars at
year-end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities while nonmonetary
items are translated at historical rates. Income and expense accounts are
translated at the average rates in effect during the year, except for depreciation
which is translated at historical rates. Foreign exchange gains and losses
have not been significant to date and have been recorded in the results of
operations. 

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries where the local
currency is the functional currency are translated to U.S. dollars at exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense accounts are
translated at the average exchange rates during the year. Translation gains
and losses have not been significant to date and have been recorded in
cumulative other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity. 

Foreign Exchange Contracts: 

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into foreign currency forward
contracts as a hedge against specific intercompany and foreign currency

receivable transactions. Forward contracts involve agreements to purchase or
sell foreign currencies at specific rates at future dates. The Company does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative trading purposes.
The Company enters into derivatives only with counterparties which are one
of the largest U.S. banks, ranked by assets in order to minimize credit risk.
The Company’s hedging activities do not subject the Company to exchange
rate risk because the gains and losses on these contracts are designed to off-
set the losses and gains on the intercompany and foreign currency receivable
transactions being hedged. The carrying amount of the forward contracts is
the fair value, which is determined by obtaining quoted market prices. Gains
and losses on forward contracts are recognized each reporting period and are
offset against the gain or loss on the hedged item in the same period in that
the underlying transactions are settled. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had contracts maturing on February 6, 2002 and March 6, 2002 to purchase
$769,000 and $925,000, respectively, in British pounds and Japanese yen. 

Computation of Net Income (Loss) Per Share: 

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding (excluding shares issued under the
Stock Option Plan which are subject to repurchase) during the periods repre-
sented. Diluted net income per share is computed using common and dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during the periods represented.
Common equivalent shares (including shares issued under the Stock Option
Plan which are subject to repurchase) are excluded from the computation of
fully diluted net loss per share when their effect is antidilutive. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

Carrying amounts of certain of the Company’s financial instruments including
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other
accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. Estimated
fair values of short-term and long-term investments are based on quoted 
market prices for the same or similar instruments. 
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Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on 
a standard cost basis which approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterio-
ration and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. 

Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which is one to seven years. Amortization of leasehold
improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter 
of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the related assets,
typically three to twelve years. Disposals of capital equipment are recorded 
by removing the costs and accumulated depreciation from the accounts and
gains or losses on disposals are included in the results of operations. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets including identifiable intangible assets to be held and used
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
Determination of recoverability is based on an estimate of undiscounted future
cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition.
Measurement of an impairment loss for long-lived assets that management
expects to hold and use are based on the fair value of the asset. Long-lived
assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less costs to sell. 

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue from its hardware product sales, including
freight charges, in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” and Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 48 “Revenue Recognition When Right 

of Return Exists.” The Company recognizes software revenue in accordance
with SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended by SOP 98-9,
“Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, with Respect to
Certain Transactions.” Under these guidelines, the Company recognizes
revenue on transactions where persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
title has transferred, product payment is not contingent upon performance of
installation or service obligations, the price is fixed or determinable and 
payment is reasonably assured. The Company accrues for warranty costs 
on hardware products, sales returns, co-op advertising and other allowances
upon shipments based upon its experience. Additionally, the Company 
recognizes extended service revenue on its hardware products over the life 
of the service contract. 

Research and Development Expenditures: 

Research and development expenditures are charged to operations as
incurred. Software development costs incurred prior to the establishment of
technological feasibility are included in research and development and are
expensed as incurred. After technological feasibility is established, material
software development costs are capitalized. The capitalized cost is then 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated product life, or on the
ratio of current revenues to total projected product revenues, whichever is
greater. To date, the period between achieving technological feasibility, which
the Company has defined as the establishment of a working model, which
typically occurs when the beta testing commences, and the general availability
of such software has been short and software development costs qualifying
for capitalization have been insignificant. Accordingly, the Company has not
capitalized any software development costs. 

Advertising:

The Company expenses the production costs of advertising as the expenses
are incurred. The production costs of advertising consist primarily of magazine
and radio advertisements, agency fees and other direct production costs. The
advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
was $11.7 million, $14.9 million, and $10.0 million, respectively. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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after December 15, 2001. In the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
$8.5 million and $9.5 million, respectively, of co-operative advertising consid-
eration was charged as a reduction of revenue. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of the adoption of this issue on the consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows. 

3. Acquisitions:

PictureTel Corporation

On October 18, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition of PictureTel
Corporation (“PictureTel”), a leader in visual collaboration, in exchange for
0.1177 shares of Polycom common stock and $3.11 in cash for each out-
standing share of PictureTel common stock. In total, approximately 6.6 million
shares of the Company’s common stock, net of 363,557 treasury shares
obtained through the acquisition, and approximately $183 million in cash 
were exchanged for all outstanding shares of PictureTel’s common stock. 
The primary reason for the acquisition and the factors that contributed to the
recognition of goodwill is that Polycom expects to be better equipped with the
financial, technological, operational and marketing resources and capabilities
necessary to compete in the communications market. In addition, Polycom
expects to expand product and service offerings while reducing costs through
economies of scale. In addition, the Company assumed outstanding options 
and warrants, which became exercisable for approximately 1.2 million shares
of the Company’s common stock. The acquisition was accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the purchase price 
was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values on the acquisition date. Since October 18, 2001, the
results of operations of PictureTel have been included in the Company’s 
condensed consolidated statements of income. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect a purchase price
of approximately $413 million, consisting of cash and Polycom common stock
valued using the average fair value of Polycom’s outstanding common stock
from May 22, 2001 to May 29, 2001, five trading days surrounding the date
the acquisition agreement was announced, and the fair value of the options
and warrant to be assumed by Polycom in the acquisition, and other costs
directly related to the acquisition as follows (in thousands): 

Cash $ 183,368
Fair value of Polycom’s common stock 195,475
Fair value of options and warrants assumed 24,117
Estimated acquisition related costs 9,908
Total consideration $ 412,868

For purposes of computing the estimated fair value of the options and 
warrants assumed, the Black-Scholes pricing model was used with the 
following assumptions: fair value of Polycom’s stock of $27.74, expected 
life of 5.5 years, risk-free rate of 5.5%, expected dividend yield of 0% and
volatility of 90%. The following is a summary of the preliminary allocation of
purchase price in the acquisition of PictureTel (in thousands): 

Tangible assets:
Current assets $ 122,561
Property, plant and equipment 4,907
Other assets 50,975
Total tangible assets acquired 178,443

Liabilities:
Current liabilities (151,850)
Long-term liabilities (9,448)

Total liabilities assumed (161,298)  

Treasury stock 11,182  
In-process research and development 49,292  
Goodwill 292,428  
Other intangible assets consisting of:   

Core technology 14,581  
Developed technology 2,847  
Patents 8,668  
Product customer relationships 3,211  
Service customer relationships 13,514    

Total consideration $ 412,868

The purchase price allocation is preliminary as the Company is currently 
evaluating various matters related to the acquisition including assessing the
fair value of certain facilities costs and other assets and liabilities. 
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Stock-based Compensation:

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
the Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation in accor-
dance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees”, and FASB Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44),
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock-Based Compensation, 
an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25” and related interpretations in
accounting for its stock-based compensation plans. Stock-based compensa-
tion related to non-employees is based on the fair value of the related stock 
or options in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and its interpretations. Expense
associated with stock-based compensation is amortized over the vesting 
period of each individual award.

Recent Pronouncements:

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 141 (SFAS 141), “Business Combinations.” SFAS 141 requires the pur-
chase method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests method. The Company adopted
this pronouncement beginning with the PictureTel Corporation acquisition
completed on October 18, 2001. 

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 (SFAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 142 changes the
accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment only
approach. In addition, the standard includes provisions, upon adoption, for
the reclassification of certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill,
reassessment of the useful lives of existing recognized intangibles, reclassifi-
cation of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and the 
testing for impairment of existing goodwill and other intangibles. For existing
goodwill and other intangibles, the Company will adopt this pronouncement
on January 1, 2002. As a result of this adoption, $6.3 million of goodwill,
which was to be amortized ratably through March 2004, will cease. The
Company adopted the non-amortization provision for goodwill contained 
within this pronouncement for new acquisitions beginning with the PictureTel
Corporation acquisition completed on October 18, 2001 

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually for impairment using a
two-step process. The first step is to identify a potential impairment and, in
transition, this step must be measured as of the beginning of the fiscal year.
However, a company has six months from the date of adoption to complete
the first step. The second step of the goodwill impairment test measures the
amount of the impairment loss (measured as of the beginning of the year of
adoption), if any, and must be completed by the end of the Company’s fiscal
year. Intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life will be tested for
impairment using a one-step process which compares the fair value to the
carrying amount of the asset as of the beginning of the fiscal year, and pursuant
to the requirements of SFAS 142 will be completed during the first quarter of
2002. Any loss resulting from the first step impairment test will be reflected as
a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first quarter of
2002. The Company has not yet determined what effect these impairment
tests will have on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144 (SFAS 144), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal 
of Long-Lived Assets”, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 supersedes FASB Statement No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”, and the accounting and reporting 
provisions relating to the disposal of a segment of a business of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 30. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of SFAS 144 on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results
of operations and cash flows. 

In September of 2001, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, issued
EITF Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by Vendor to a
Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” which is a codification 
of EITF Issues No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,” No. 00-14,
“Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,” and No. 00-22, “Accounting for
‘Points’ and Certain Other Time- or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers and
Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered in the Future.” EITF 00-
25, as codified by EITF 01-09, established the treatment in the statement of
operations of vendor consideration to resellers of a vendor’s products. EITF
00-25 and 01-09 are effective for the interim and year-end periods beginning 
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The following is a summary of the allocation of purchase price in the acquisition
of Circa (in thousands): 

Tangible assets, less liabilities assumed $   (730)  
In-process research and development 2,450  
Identifiable intangible assets 3,650  
Goodwill 8,454  
Unearned stock-based compensation 780     
Total purchase price $14,604

The amount allocated to purchased in-process research and development
was determined by an independent appraisal using established valuation
techniques in the high-technology communications industry and were
expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been
established and no future alternative uses existed. It is reasonably possible
that the development of this technology could fail because of either prohibitive
cost, inability to perform the required efforts to complete the technology or
other factors outside of the Company’s control such as a change in the market
for the resulting developed products. In addition, at such time that the project
is completed it is reasonably possible that the completed products do not
receive market acceptance or that the Company is unable to produce and
market the product cost effectively. 

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets, primarily representing existing 
partnerships and acquired workforce, are being amortized over the estimated
useful lives of three years. For the year ended December 31, 2001, amortization
of goodwill, unearned stock-based compensation and other intangible assets
associated with this acquisition totaled approximately $3.2 million. 

The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects the results of
operations for the three years ended December 31, 2001 as if the acquisition
had occurred on January 1, 1999. These pro forma results have been prepared
for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of what
operating results would have been had the acquisition actually taken place 

on January 1, 1999, and may not be indicative of future operating results,
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999  

Net revenues $383,189 $373,554 $224,902  
Net income (loss) $(29,490) $ 35,151 $ 28,720  
Net income (loss) per share:     

Basic $ (0.35) $     0.46 $     0.43  
Diluted $ (0.35) $     0.41 $     0.36  

Weighted average shares:     
Basic 85,290 75,930 66,141  
Diluted 85,290 84,743 78,763  

Accord Networks Ltd.

On February 28, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition of Accord
Networks Ltd. (Accord). Accord is a leading provider of next-generation, 
rich-media network products that enable Internet Protocol (IP) and other 
network voice and video communications in both the customer premises and
service provider markets. Under the terms of the merger, Polycom exchanged
approximately 6.5 million shares of common stock for all outstanding Accord
shares and assumed Accord options exercisable into approximately 1.3 million
shares of Polycom’s common stock. The exchange and assumption was at 
a rate of 0.3065 Polycom shares for each Accord share. The transaction was
treated as a pooling of interests for financial reporting purposes and conse-
quently, the Company’s historical consolidated financial statements have 
been restated as if the combined entity existed for all periods presented. All
intercompany transactions between the two companies have been eliminated
in consolidation. The Company and Accord had the same fiscal year ends of
December 31. Further, adjustments required to conform accounting policies
between the two companies, primarily associated with the classification of
expenses, were insignificant. 
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The amount allocated to purchased in-process research and development
and other intangible assets was determined by management using an
independent appraisal. The income approach, which includes an analysis of
the markets, cash flows and risks associated with achieving such cash flows,
was the primary technique utilized in valuing the developed technology and
in-process research and development. The estimated net free cash flows 
generated by the in-process research and development projects were
discounted at rates ranging from 30 to 40 percent in relation to the stage of
completion and the technical risks associated with achieving technological
feasibility. The in-process research and development projects were expensed
upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been established
and no future alternative uses existed. It is reasonably possible that the 
development of this technology could fail because of either prohibitive cost,
inability to perform the required efforts to complete the technology or other
factors outside of the Company’s control such as a change in the market for
the resulting developed products. In addition, at such time that the project 
is completed it is reasonably possible that the completed products do not
receive market acceptance or that the Company is unable to produce and
market the product cost effectively. 

Goodwill originating from the acquisition of PictureTel has not been amortized
in accordance with the guidance contained in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 142 (SFAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” None
of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other intangible
assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of three years. 
For the year ended December 31, 2001, amortization associated with the
acquisition totaled approximately $2.9 million. 

The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects the results of
operations for the two years ended December 31, 2001 as if the acquisition
had occurred on January 1, 2000. The pro forma results exclude purchased
in-process research and development and the impairment of licenses arising
from the acquisition of PictureTel of $5.5 million due to their nonrecurring
nature. The pro forma financial information included nonrecurring items
incurred by PictureTel as follows: $14.5 million of nonrecurring charges
incurred in 2001 and $15.3 million of nonrecurring gains and $42.3 million of
non recurring charges in 2000. These pro forma results have been prepared

for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of what
operating results would have been had the acquisition actually taken place 
on January 1, 2000, and may not be indicative of future operating results,
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000

Net revenues $ 518,260 $ 612,803  
Net loss $ (22,512) $ (59,274)  
Net loss per share:    

Basic $    (0.25) $    (0.72)  
Diluted $    (0.25) $    (0.72)  

Weighted average shares:    
Basic 90,379 81,848  
Diluted 90,379 81,848  

Circa Communications Ltd.

On April 2, 2001 the Company completed the acquisition of privately-held
development stage Circa Communications Ltd. (Circa), a leading developer 
of voice over internet protocol (VoIP) telephony products, in exchange for
665,884 shares of common stock and assumption of outstanding options
exercisable into 248,597 shares of Polycom common stock, with an aggregate
value of $9.8 million, and $4.0 million cash for preferred stock plus acquisition
costs of approximately $0.8 million. An additional 421,555 shares of Polycom
common stock are issuable upon the successful completion of certain revenue
based earn-out thresholds. The acquisition was accounted for using the 
purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the purchase price was 
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values on the acquisition date. 

Since April 2, 2001, the results of operations of Circa have been included in
the Company’s consolidated statements of income. The Company recorded
unearned stock-based compensation of approximately $780,000 associated
with unvested stock options issued to employees in conjunction with the
acquisition. This amount is included as a component of stockholders’ equity
and is being amortized over the vesting period of options.
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4. Acquisition-related charges:

In the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, related to the 
completion of the acquisitions of Atlas, Accord, Circa, PictureTel and ASPI, 
the Company recognized charges of $24.1 million, $4.8 million and $1.7 million,
respectively for acquisition-related costs including the cost of actions designed
to improve the Company’s combined competitiveness, productivity and future
profitability. These acquisition-related actions included the elimination of
redundant and excess facilities and workforce in the Company’s combined
businesses and the elimination of redundant assets. 

Facility Closings

Facility charges in the amount of $1.4 million were primarily comprised of
lease termination costs and the net present value of the minimum lease 
payments for vacated and redundant facilities that the company intends to
sublease. The Company netted estimated sublease cash receipts against its
lease obligations to determine the minimum lease payments for the facilities
its intends to sublease. The longest lease term for facilities identified for a 
sublease arrangement extends out to 2009. The sublease arrangements and
termination of the active lease obligations for the remaining redundant facilities
not scheduled for sublease are scheduled to be completed by the end of
2002. In addition, the Company assumed liabilities related to facility closings,
totaling $24.1 million, through the acquisitions of PictureTel and ASPI. 

Severance

Severance charges in the amount of $2.3 million were recorded in 2001 and
were for severance payments and related fringe costs for workforce reduc-
tions that were planned to be performed in 2001 and 2002. The remaining
planned workforce reductions as of December 31, 2001 are expected to be
completed by June 2002. Severance payments are being made over a period
of time through the end of 2004. In addition, the Company assumed liabilities
related to severance, totaling $14.1 million, through the acquisitions of
PictureTel and ASPI. 

Asset Impairments and Write-offs, Other Exit Costs and Merger Fees

Asset impairments in the amount of $6.7 million and asset write-offs in the
amount of $0.8 million were principally related to the elimination of redundant
or excess equipment. Other exit costs in the amount of $0.3 million were related
to payment obligations that carry no future benefit to the combined operations
and are scheduled to be complete by March 2002. Merger-related transaction
and period expenses for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
of $12.6 million, $4.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively principally consisted
of financial advisory, accounting, legal and consulting fees, and other direct
merger-related expenses incurred in the period. 

The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s acquisition-
related and restructuring costs: 

FACILITIES SEVERANCE ASSET ASSET OTHER EXIT MERGER FEES
CHARGES COST IMPAIRMENT WRITE-OFF COSTS & EXPENSES 

1999 Charges $       — $       — $      — $     — $    — $    1,650  
1999 Usages — — — — — (1,650)       
Balance at December 31, 1999 — — — — — —        
2000 Charges — — — — — 4,768  
2000 Usages — — — — — (301)       
Balance at December 31, 2000 — — — — — 4,467  
2001 Charges 1,429 2,311 6,655 771 309 12,602 
2001 Liabilities assumed through purchase acquisitions 24,081 14,088 — — — —  
2001 Usages (137) (5,359) (6,655) (771) (126) (15,258)       
Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 25,373 $ 11,040 $ — $ — $ 183 $ 1,811
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The following table reconciles the Company’s original revenues and earnings
to the combined (in thousands, except per share data): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999  

Net revenues:     
Polycom $373,413 $331,302 $200,067  
Accord 9,776 42,252 24,835      
Combined net revenues $383,189 $373,554 $224,902      

Net income (loss):     
Polycom $ (27,782) $ 49,228 $ 29,353  
Accord 82 (11,765) 364      
Combined net income (loss) $ (27,700) $ 37,463 $ 29,717      

Basic net income (loss) per share:     
Polycom $   (0.33) $     0.69 $     0.45  
Accord 0.00 (0.19) —      
Combined basic net income 

(loss) per share $    (0.33) $     0.50 $     0.45      

Diluted net income (loss) per share:     
Polycom $   (0.33) $     0.64 $     0.40  
Accord 0.00 (0.19) (0.02)     
Combined diluted net income 

(loss) per share $   (0.33) $     0.45 $     0.38  

Atlanta Signal Processors, Inc. 

On November 30, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition of Atlanta
Signal Processors, Inc. (ASPI), a manufacturer of voice products for the
installed voice systems market, in exchange for $4.9 million in cash for all 
of the outstanding ASPI shares and assumption of outstanding options 
exercisable into 30,687 shares of Polycom common stock, with an aggregate
value of $0.9 million plus acquisition costs of approximately $0.2 million. The
acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and
accordingly, the purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the acquisition
date. The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of
the business from the date of acquisition. Pro forma results of operations have
not been presented because the effects of this acquisition were not material
on an individual basis. 

The amounts allocated to in-process research and development were deter-
mined by an independent appraisal using established valuation techniques in
the high-technology communications equipment industry and were expensed
upon acquisition because the technological feasibility had not been established
and no future alternative uses existed. Goodwill originating from the acquisition
has not been amortized in accordance with SFAS 142. Other intangible assets
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over periods not exceeding three
years. For the year ended December 31, 2001, amortization associated with
the acquisition totaled $114,000. The Company recorded unearned stock-
based compensation of approximately $754,000 associated with unvested
stock options issued to employees in conjunction with the acquisition. This
amount is included as a component of stockholders’ equity and is being
amortized over the vesting period of options consistent with the guidance 
stated in FIN 44. A summary of the purchase transactions is outlined as 
follows (in thousands): 

Tangible assets, less liabilities assumed $  (279) 
In-process research and development 900  
Goodwill 2,210 
Identifiable intangible assets 4,100  
Unearned stock-based compensation 754  
Deferred tax liability (1,693)     
Total consideration $ 5,992

Atlas Communication Engines, Inc. 

On December 1, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of Atlas
Communication Engines, Inc., (Atlas) whereby a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company was merged with and into Atlas. Atlas designed, developed,
marketed and sold high quality digital subscriber line (DSL) customer premise
equipment and internet access devices primarily on an original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) basis. Approximately 2.6 million shares of the Company’s
common stock were exchanged for all of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of Atlas. In addition, outstanding stock options to purchase Atlas com-
mon stock were converted into options to purchase approximately 1.0 million
shares of the Company’s common stock. The transaction was treated as a
pooling of interests for financial reporting purposes and, consequently, all
prior period figures have been restated as if the combined entity existed for all
periods presented. All intercompany transactions between the two companies
have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company and Atlas had the same
fiscal year end of December 31. Adjustments, related primarily to fixed asset
capitalization, depreciation and inventory accounting, have been made to 
conform and align accounting policies between the two companies. 
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9. Business Risks and Credit Concentration:

The Company sells a limited number of products which serve the communica-
tions equipment market. A substantial majority of the Company’s net revenues
are derived from sales of the ViewStation, SoundStation, iPower, network
systems and network access products. Any factor adversely affecting demand
or supply for these products could materially adversely affect the Company’s
business and financial performance. 

Currently, the Company subcontracts the manufacturing of almost all of the
video, voice and network access products through one subcontractor in Asia.
The Company believes that there are a number of alternative contract manu-
facturers that could produce these products, but in the event of a reduction 
or interruption of supply, it could take a significant period of time to qualify an
alternative subcontractor and commence manufacturing. The effect of such
reduction or interruption in supply on results of operations would be material.
Certain key components used in our products are currently available from
only one source and others are available from only a limited number of
sources. In addition, we are currently in the process of transferring the manu-
facturing of the iPower 900 Series product from its current contract manufac-
turers to Celestica. Also, various products acquired as a result of the ASPI
acquisition are being transferred to Celestica. During the transition period for
these products we could experience manufacturing and shipment delays,
increased manufacturing costs and reseller and end-user customer dissatis-
faction. This further concentrates our product manufacturing in Celestica’s
Thailand facility and increases our exposure to adverse financial consequences
in the event of a disruption in Celestica’s manufacturing capabilities for any
reason. Further, the Asian economy has gone through some recent problems
which, as yet, have not had a material impact on the supply of Polycom product
from the subcontractor or component suppliers used in this region. However,
should the economic problems in Asia persist, it could create an interruption
in supply which could materially adversely affect the results of operations. 

The Company’s network systems products are manufactured in Israel which is
currently experiencing internal and external conflicts that include terrorist and
military action. The Company could experience a manufacturing disruption
due to acts associated with this conflict which could harm our business. In
addition, the technology used in the network system products was developed

through grants from the Office of the Chief Scientist in Israel. Under Israeli 
law, it is prohibited to transfer technology developed pursuant to these grants
to any person without the prior written consent of the Office of the Chief
Scientist. The grants also contain restrictions on the ability to manufacture
products developed with these grants outside of Israel. Approval to manufacture
such products outside of Israel, if granted, is generally subject to an increase
in the total amount to be repaid to the Office of the Chief Scientist to between
120% to 300% of the amount granted, depending on the extent of the manu-
facturing to be conducted outside of Israel. These restrictions on the ability 
to transfer technology to third parties or manufacture products outside Israel
may adversely affect the Company’s operating results and significantly reduce
the value of the technology developed under these grants. 

The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and investments are maintained with a
limited number of international investment management companies and com-
mercial banks and their international affiliates, and are invested in the form of
demand deposit accounts, money market accounts, corporate debt securities
and government securities. Deposits in these institutions may exceed the
amount of insurance provided on such deposits. 

The Company markets its products to distributors and end-users throughout
the world. Management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Company’s
customers and maintains an allowance for potential credit losses. The expan-
sion of Polycom’s product offerings may increase the Company’s credit risk
as customers place larger orders for the new products. There can be no
assurance that the Company’s credit loss experience will remain at or near
historic levels. At December 31, 2001, no single customer accounted for 
more than 10% of accounts receivable. At December 31, 2000, one customer
individually accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable. 

The Company has investments in securities of private companies which are
classified on the balance sheet as “Long-term investments.” In addition, the
Company has purchased licenses for technology incorporated in its products.
The value of these long-term assets is monitored for any impairment and if 
it is determined that a write-down is necessary, this charge could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows. 
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5. Investments:

Investments at December 31, 2001 and 2000 comprise (in thousands): 

FAIR VALUE COST BASIS  

Investments—Short-term:
US government securities $   5,282 $   5,317  
State and local governments 13,029 13,032  
Corporate debt and equity securities 5,037 5,037      

23,348 23,386  
Investments—Long-term:
US government securities 24,402 24,440  
State and local governments 17,073 17,005  
Corporate debt and equity securities 27,207 26,650

68,682 68,095      
Balances at December 31, 2001 $  92,030 $  91,481

Investments—Short-term: 
US government securities $   7,394 $   7,390  
State and local governments 18,686 18,678  
Corporate debt securities 26,319 26,337      

52,399 52,405  
Investments—Long-term: 
US government securities 2,405 2,400  
State and local governments 26,309 26,228  
Corporate debt and equity securities 24,829 24,981      

53,543 53,609      
Balances at December 31, 2000 $105,942 $106,014

All short-term investments as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 mature within
one year. Long-term investments, excluding equities, mature within two years.
During 2001, the Company recorded net realized gains of $391,000 on the
disposal of investments. The Company used the specific identification method
for determining the cost basis and resulting realized gain or loss on the trans-
actions. During 2000, there were no realized gains or losses on the disposal
of investments. Included in investments at December 31, 2001 are approxi-
mately $9.7 million in investments in publicly traded equity securities which
have been marked to market from their original $9.5 million investment value. 

6. Inventories:

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000  

Raw materials $15,412 $ 9,493  
Work in Process 1,101 1,033  
Finished goods 31,660 39,445      
Total inventories $48,173 $49,971      

7. Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets, net, consist of the following (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000  

Computer equipment and software $35,309 $27,885  
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 11,185 7,659  
Tooling equipment 7,725 5,813 
Leasehold improvements 5,597 1,542      

59,816 42,899
Less, accumulated depreciation 

and amortization 30,871 20,853      
Total fixed assets, net $28,945 $22,046      

8. Other Accrued Liabilities:

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000  

Accrued expenses $22,342 $ 8,048  
Short-term restructuring reserves 14,460 —  
Warranty reserves 9,123 3,884  
Sales tax payable 1,930 151  
Employee stock purchase plan withholding 1,637 1,604  
Other accrued liabilities 14,895 2,536      
Total other accrued liabilities $64,387 $16,223 
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Leases: 

The Company leases certain office facilities and equipment under noncance-
lable operating leases expiring between 2001 and 2014. Future minimum
lease payments excluding leases subject to cancelation within twelve months
are as follows (in thousands): 

LEASES

Year ending December 31,

2002 $ 13,230  
2003 13,817  
2004 13,447  
2005 11,563  
2006 11,248  
Thereafter 48,636     
Minimum future lease payments $111,941

The Company is currently headquartered in an approximately 102,000 square
foot facility in Milpitas, California pursuant to a lease which expires in January
2007. This facility accommodates corporate administration, some voice and
network access research and development, manufacturing, marketing, sales
and customer support. On February 19, 2001, the Company entered into a
ten-year lease agreement for a 50,000 square foot facility in Pleasanton,
California which is currently under construction. This facility will become the
Company’s corporate headquarters when completed, which is expected to be
in the second quarter of 2002. 

The majority of the Company’s video and service operations are located in
approximately 321,000 square feet in Andover, Massachusetts pursuant to a
lease that expires in September 2014 and approximately 55,000 square foot in
Austin, Texas pursuant to a lease that expires in December 2004. The network
systems operations occupy approximately 31,000 square feet in Petach Tikva,
Israel and 18,000 square feet in Atlanta, Georgia. In addition, the Company
leases space in Goleta, California for the network access products’ engineering,
manufacturing and marketing organizations and the Company leases space in
Vancouver, Canada for the VoIP development operation. 

The Company leases approximately 44,000 square foot facility in Tracy,
California which is used as the North American and Latin American distribution
center. Further, the Company utilizes space at a manufacturing contractor in
Thailand and the Company’s European distribution contractor in the United
Kingdom and Netherlands to provide Asian and European distribution and
repair centers, respectively. 

Included in the noncancellable operating leases are those assumed as 
part of the acquisition of PictureTel. The Company has identified vacated or
redundant PictureTel leased facilities that the company intends to terminate 
or sublease and has recognized them as a liability assumed in a purchase
combination. The liability is valued at the estimated net present value of the
lease commitments. The estimated net present value of the cost of terminating
these leases net of any estimated sublease rent is $24.1 million of which
$4.3 million is classified as a current liability and $19.8 million is classified 
as a long term liability. 

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was
$8.3 million, $6.3 million, and $3.0 million, respectively. 

Grants:

In December 2000, Accord repaid all of its outstanding grants from the Office
of the Chief Scientist of the Israeli Ministry of Industry and Trade. Accordingly,
an amount of approximately $5.5 million was recorded as an expense in the
consolidated statement of operations in 2000. Previously, Accord was obligated
to pay royalties to the Office of the Chief Scientist on proceeds from sales of
systems resulting from three research and development projects which the
Office of the Chief Scientist helped fund with grants to Accord, at the following
progressive royalty rates: 3% of annual system sales for the first three years of
system sales by Accord, 4% for the next three years of system sales, and 5%
for any systems sales thereafter, up to 100% of the aggregate amount of
grants received by Accord. At the time the funding was received, successful
development of the related projects was not assured. 
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10. Commitments and Contingencies:

Litigation:

On September 3, 1997, VTEL Corporation, or VTEL, filed a lawsuit in the State
District Court in Travis County, Texas against ViaVideo Communications, Inc.
and its founders (who were formerly employed by VTEL). On May 27, 1998,
following our acquisition of ViaVideo, VTEL amended its suit to add Polycom
as a defendant. In the lawsuit, VTEL alleged breach of contract, breach of
confidential relationship, disclosure of proprietary information and related 
allegations. ViaVideo, its founders and Polycom answered the suit, denying 
in their entirety VTEL’s allegations. On March 3, 2000, VTEL voluntarily dis-
missed the allegations against Polycom and ViaVideo with prejudice for no
consideration. As a one-time item in the first quarter of 2000, the excess
accrual associated with the expenses the Company estimated to be incurred
in connection with this lawsuit totaling $1.8 million was released since no 
further material expenses will be incurred. 

On November 20, 1998, a patent infringement claim was filed against
Accord’s U.S. subsidiary, Accord Networks, Inc., in the United States District
Court, District of Massachusetts, alleging that the U.S. subsidiary had and was
willfully and deliberately infringing on one of Ezenia!’s patents. The complaint
was later amended to allege that the U.S. subsidiary also had and was willfully
and deliberately infringing on other patents. On June 10, 1999, Accord was
added as a defendant in the lawsuit. On June 16, 2000, Accord and its U.S.
subsidiary entered into a written settlement agreement, and the Court entered
an order dismissing the case. The lawsuit settlement cost of $6.5 million,
which final payment was made on December 28, 2000, represents a one-time
charge resulting from this settlement and was reported under “Litigation 
settlement” in the consolidated statement of operations in June 2000. 

From time to time, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings 
arising from the normal course of business activities. In addition, from time to
time, third parties assert patent or trademark infringement claims against the
Company in the form of letters and other forms or communication. Currently,
the Company does not believe that any of these legal proceedings or claims

are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Standby Letters of Credit:

The Company has several standby letters of credit totaling approximately
$186,000 which were issued to guarantee certain of the Company’s foreign
office lease obligations and other contractual obligations. The Company also
maintained, from time to time, commercial letters of credit as payments for the
importation of certain products. The amounts did not exceed $100,000 and
were outstanding less than 120 days. These standby letters of credit were
canceled in 2001. 

License Agreements: 

On March 3, 2000, the Company entered into a patent licensing agreement
with VTEL Corporation (VTEL). VTEL provided a fully-paid up, royalty-free
license to three patents related to various videoconferencing technologies. In
exchange for these licenses, the Company paid VTEL approximately $8.3 mil-
lion and sublicensed to VTEL a royalty-bearing patent for videoconferencing
technology. The royalty, if any, under the sublicense was payable to the patent
holder not Polycom. Amortization of the license was computed using the
straight-line method over the economic life of the license of five years. On
October 19, 2001, the Company recorded a charge of $5.5 million related 
to the impairment of the VTEL license as management determined that the
technology used by PictureTel was superior to that obtained by Polycom
under the VTEL license and that the PictureTel technology would be used in
Polycom’s products and research and development and would better protect
the Company’s intellectual property. This charge is included in
“Acquisition-related costs” on the consolidated statement of operations. 

The Company also enters into other various license agreements in the normal
course of business and the cost of those agreements are amortized over the
expected life of the respective agreements. The cost of these agreements and
the amounts amortized in the years shown, both combined and individually,
are not significant. 
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Common Stock:

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, zero and 69,502 shares, respectively, of
common stock were outstanding but subject to repurchase. These shares
resulted from the founder stock of ViaVideo Communications, Inc. and
ViaVideo employee stock options. 

Treasury Stock:

As a result of the acquisition of PictureTel, the Company acquired 363,557
shares of treasury stock with an aggregate value of $11.2 million based on the
market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the acquisition. 

Stock Option Exchange Program:

On May 21, 2001, the Company commenced a voluntary stock option exchange
program to certain eligible employees and consultants of the Company. Under
the program, eligible employees and consultants were given the option to
cancel each outstanding stock option previously granted to them at an exer-
cise price greater than or equal to $23.55 per share, in exchange for a new
option to buy 0.85 shares of the Company’s common stock to be granted on
December 26, 2001, six months and one day from June 25, 2001, the date the
old options were canceled. In total, 1.1 million stock options were canceled as
a result of this program and approximately 827,000 stock options were granted.
The exchange program did not result in additional compensation charges or
variable option plan accounting.

Stock Option Plan: 

In 2001, the Board of Directors reserved 750,000 shares of common stock
under the 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the Nonstatutory Plan) for
issuance of nonqualified stock options to employees of acquired companies
and for foreign-based employees ineligible for incentive stock options. 

In 1996, the Board of Directors reserved 6,250,000 shares of common stock
under its 1996 Stock Option Plan (the Plan) for issuance to employees and
directors of the Company. In 1997, 1999, 2000 and 2001, an additional
2,000,000 shares, 3,000,000 shares, 3,500,000 shares and 2,500,000 shares,
respectively, were reserved and approved by stockholders. The Plan super-
sedes the 1991 Stock Option Plan (91 Plan). 

In 1996, ViaVideo reserved 1,775,526 shares of common stock under the 
1996 ViaVideo Communications, Inc. Stock Option Plan (ViaVideo Plan) for
issuance to employees of ViaVideo. In 1997, an additional 1,420,420 shares
were reserved and approved by stockholders. The ViaVideo Plan was assumed
by Polycom on January 2, 1998 pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of
Reorganization by and among Polycom, Venice Acquisition Corporation
and ViaVideo Communications, Inc. dated June 11, 1997 as amended
September 2, 1997. All remaining option shares available for grant and
subsequent cancellations of option shares under the ViaVideo Plan expired 
or will expire as no additional option shares can be granted from the ViaVideo
Plan subsequent to the merger. 

In 1996, Atlas reserved 879,736 shares of common stock under the 1996
Stock Incentive Plan (Atlas Plan) for issuance to employees of Atlas. In 1997,
an additional 351,894 shares were reserved and approved by stockholders.
The Atlas Plan was assumed by Polycom on December 1, 1999 pursuant to
the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization by and among Polycom, Periscope
Acquisition Corporation and Atlas Communication Engines, Inc. dated
November 18, 1999. All remaining option shares available for grant and 
subsequent cancellations of option shares under the Atlas Plan expired or 
will expire as no additional option shares can be granted from the Atlas Plan
subsequent to the merger. 
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In December 2000, Accord repaid all of its outstanding grants from the
Israel-United States Binational Industrial Research and Development foundation
(BIRD). Accordingly, an amount of approximately $0.4 million was recorded as
an expense in the consolidated statement of operations in 2000. Accord was
obligated to pay royalties to BIRD on the proceeds from sale, leasing or other
marketing or commercial exploitation of the results of research and develop-
ment in which BIRD helped fund with grants to Accord. Royalties up to the
amount of 150% of the aggregate amount of the grant were to be paid at the
rate of 5% of related products sales, up to the aggregate amount of the grant;
once the amount of the grant was repaid, royalties would have been payable
at the rate of 2.5% of related products sales, until additional royalties in an
amount of 16%-50% of the aggregate grant amount were to be paid to BIRD. 

Accord was obligated to pay royalties to the Government of Israel related 
to marketing expenses in which the Government helped fund with grants to
Accord amounting to approximately $0.3 million, which were received in 1996
through 1998. The royalties were payable at the rate of 3% of the increase in
export sales after Accord began receiving marketing grants, up to the amount
of the dollar-linked grant received. As of December 31, 1999, this entire royalty
obligation was recorded in the financial statements. 

Royalty expenses related to the above mentioned commitments for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, were approximately zero,
$1.6 million and $0.9 million, respectively. 

11. Credit Arrangements:

The Company has available a $25 million revolving line of credit with a bank
under an agreement dated November 15, 2001. Borrowings under the line are
unsecured and bear interest at the bank’s prime rate (4.75% at December 31,
2001) or at the London interbank offered rate (LIBOR) plus 0.65% (approxi-
mately 2.525% to 2.65%, depending on the term of the borrowings at
December 31, 2001). Borrowings under the line are subject to certain financial
covenants and restrictions on liquidity, indebtedness, financial guarantees,
business combinations, profitability levels, and other related items. The line
of credit expires on December 3, 2003. 

There were no balances outstanding on the line of credit and the Company
was in compliance with all applicable financial covenants and restrictions for
the periods presented. 

12. Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock:

On June 28, 2000, Accord converted 3,693,761 mandatorily redeemable 
convertible preferred shares into common stock. 

13. Stockholders’ Equity:

Public Stock Offering:

In July 2000, Accord completed an initial public offering of 1,762,376 shares
of common stock at an offering price of $35.89 per share. Of the shares sold,
1,732,665 were sold by Accord for net proceeds of approximately $54.9 million
and 29,731 shares were sold by selling stockholders. 

In August 2000, the Company completed the public offering of 5,608,976
shares of common stock at a price of $45.438 per share. Of the shares sold,
approximately 3.5 million shares were sold by the Company for net proceeds
of approximately $148.3 million, and the balance of shares were sold by a
selling stockholder. The Company used the net proceeds from this sale 
primarily for general corporate purposes, including working capital and 
capital expenditures. 

Stock Split:

On August 2, 2000, the Company announced that its Board of Directors
approved a two-for-one split of the Company’s common stock. The stock split
was effected as a stock dividend on August 31, 2000, and payable to all
stockholders of record as of August 15, 2000. All references to share and per
share amounts for all periods presented have been adjusted to give effect to
this stock split. 
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Activity under the Plans is as follows (in thousands, except share and per share data): 

OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
SHARES AVAILABLE NUMBER OF WEIGHTED AVG

FOR GRANT SHARES EXERCISE PRICE AGGREGATE PRICE EXERCISE PRICE

Balances, January 1, 1999 1,090,945 9,623,635 $  0.04-$10.28 $ 25,831 $  2.68  
Options reserved 3,306,500 — — — —  
Options granted (4,003,565) 4,003,565 $  2.84-$31.94 66,659 $16.65  
Options exercised — (2,391,322) $  0.04-$16.00 (4,720) $  1.97  
Options canceled 604,160 (604,160) $  0.04-$27.74 (4,581) $  7.58  
Options expired (278,192) — — — —         

Balances, December 31, 1999 719,848 10,631,718 $  0.04-$31.94 $ 83,189 $  7.82  
Options reserved 3,959,750 — — — —  
Options granted (5,060,392) 5,060,392 $23.46-$67.00 206,899 $40.89  
Options exercised — (3,292,079) $  0.04-$27.84 (12,569) $  3.82  
Options canceled 912,420 (912,420) $  0.04-$65.19 (14,411) $15.79  
Options expired (67,000) — — — —         

Balances, December 31, 2000 464,626 11,487,611 $  0.04-$67.00 $263,108 $22.90  
Options reserved 3,250,000 — — — —  
Options related to acquisitions 1,994,521 — — — —  
Options granted (6,283,707) 6,283,707 $  0.01-$37.29 164,990 $26.22  
Options exercised — (2,399,381) $  0.01-$33.50 (13,442) $  5.88  
Options canceled 2,232,760 (2,232,760) $  0.01-$67.00 (90,655) $41.06  
Options expired (625,321) — — — —         

Balances, December 31, 2001 1,032,879 13,139,177 $  0.01-$67.00 $324,001 $24.66

As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, 4,224,324, 2,725,647 and 2,644,251 outstanding options were exercisable at an aggregate average exercise 
price of $21.32, $8.07 and $1.79, respectively. Of these options that were exercisable, zero, 109,083 and 738,638 as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, were unvested and, the shares received on exercise would be subject to repurchase. 
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In 1995, Accord reserved 5,087 shares of common stock under the 1995
Accord Networks Ltd. Stock ownership and Option Plan dated March 29, 
1995 for issuance to employees of Accord Networks Ltd. In 1995, 1996, 1997,
and 1999 an additional 239,739 shares, 17,209 shares, 687,419 shares, and
306,500 shares, respectively, were reserved. In the year 2000, the Accord
Networks Ltd. 2000 Share Option Plan, the Accord Networks Ltd. Share
Ownership and Option Plan (2000), and the Accord Networks, Ltd. 2000 Non-
Employee Directors Option Plan were created with initial reserves of 229,875
shares, 229,875 shares and 61,300 shares, respectively. All of the Accord
Networks Ltd. Plans were assumed by Polycom on February 28, 2001 pursuant
to the Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated as of December
5, 2000 as amended. All remaining option shares available for grant and sub-
sequent cancellations of option shares under the Accord Networks Ltd. Plans
expired or will expire as no additional option shares can be granted from the
any of the Accord Networks Ltd. Plans subsequent to the merger. 

Under the terms of the Plan, the 91 Plan, the Nonstatutory Plan, the ViaVideo
Plan, the Atlas Plan, the Accord Plans and the Circa Plan, options may be
granted at prices not lower than fair market value at date of grant as deter-
mined by the Board of Directors. The options granted under the 91 Plan, the
ASPI Plan, the ViaVideo Plan and the Circa Plan are immediately exercisable,
expire in ten years from the date of grant, and the unvested shares issued
upon exercise of the options are generally subject to a right of repurchase by
the Company upon termination of employment with the Company. Options
granted under the Plan, the Nonstatutory Plan, the Acquisition Plan, the Atlas
Plan, the Accord Plans and the Circa Plan expire ten years from the date of
grant and generally are only exercisable upon vesting. 

Options granted under the Plan prior to December 1998 and under the 91
Plan normally vest at 20% after completing one year of service to the
Company and the remaining amount equally over 48 months until fully vested
after five years. Options granted under the ViaVideo Plan normally vest monthly
for each month of service to the Company until fully vested after four years.
Options granted under the Atlas Plan normally vest at 33% after completing
one year of service to the Company and the remaining amount in equal 
quarterly installments over the next eight quarters until fully vested after three
years. Options granted under the Acquisition Plan, the Accord Plans and the
Circa Plan normally vest at 25% after completing one year of service to the
Company and the remaining amount in equal quarterly installments over the
next twelve quarters until fully vested after four years. Options granted under
the Nonstatutory Plan vest based on conditions set forth by the plan adminis-
trator. For new options granted under the Plan beginning in December 1998,
the options normally vest at 25% after completing one year of service to the
Company and the remaining amount equally over 36 months until fully vested
after four years. In addition, as a special grant to employees, option grants
that become fully vested after one year of service to the Company have been
made under the Plan and the Atlas Plan. While there are many option grants
with vesting schedules different than those described, generally vesting of
options is consistent within each of the plans. 

The Company has, in connection with the acquisitions of various companies,
assumed the stock option plans of each acquired company. During fiscal
2001, a total of approximately 2.0 million shares of the Company’s common
stock have been reserved for issuance under the assumed plans and the
related options are included in the following table. 
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
multiple options approach with the Black-Scholes model with the following
weighted average assumptions: 

2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 4.31% 6.00%-6.24% 5.09%-5.66%
Expected life (years) 0.5 0.5 0.5
Expected dividends — — — 
Expected volatility 0.9 0.5-0.9 0.6-0.8  

The weighted average fair value of options granted pursuant to the Plans were
$14.44, $23.36 and $9.58 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

The Company has also estimated the fair value of purchase rights issued
under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Rights under this plan were also
evaluated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Purchase periods
occur twice yearly and each effectively contains a 6-month option. 

The fair value of each purchase right is estimated with the Black-Scholes
model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 4.31% 6.02% 5.09%  
Expected life (years) 0.5 0.5 0.5  
Expected dividends — — —  
Expected volatility 0.9 0.9 0.8  

The weighted average fair value of purchase rights granted pursuant to the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $17.47, $5.73
and $2.78, respectively. 

Unearned Stock-based Compensation: 

In connection with the acquisitions of Circa and ASPI, the Company recorded
unearned stock-based compensation costs for unvested stock options issued

to employees totaling $1.5 million which is being recognized over the vesting
period of the options. In connection with certain stock option grants during
1999, the Company recorded unearned stock-based compensation cost totaling
$2.4 million which is being recognized over the vesting period of the related
options of three years. Amortization expense associated with unearned stock
compensation totaled $557,000, $845,000 and $447,000 in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. 

Approximately $343,000 and $498,000 of unearned stock based compensation
was reversed in 2001 and 2000, respectively, upon cancellation of unvested
stock option grants resulting from termination of certain employees. 

Warrants: 

In connection with a joint marketing and development agreement, dated
March 28, 1997, for the ShowStation IP, Polycom granted 3M warrants to pur-
chase up to 4,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise
price of $3.75 per share. The warrants were due to expire in March 1999 and
were exercised on March 1, 1999. The warrants were valued at approximately
$40,000 on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. 

In March 1996 and 1998, Accord issued warrants to purchase 178,906 and
369,402 shares of series B preferred stock, respectively, for total consideration
of $5,000, to several shareholders at an exercise price of $7.31 per share.
Accord issued 18,130 and 160,776 shares of series B preferred stock in
December 1999 and January 2000, respectively, upon the exercise of warrants.
In the third quarter of 2000, Accord issued 294,175 shares of common stock
upon the cashless exercise of a warrant. 

On April 28, 1999, Accord granted a warrant to a bank in connection with a
two-year credit line. The warrant is exercisable for a period of three years to
purchase 42,009 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $11.91 per
share. In December 2000 the bank exercised the warrant for 30,658 shares of
common stock. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had no significant
warrants outstanding. 
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The options outstanding and currently exercisable by exercise price at December 31, 2001 are as follows: 

OPTIONS CURRENTLY
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE  

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

REMAINING AVERAGE AVERAGE
NUMBER CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICE   OUTSTANDING LIFE (YRS) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

$ 0.01-$ 6.53 1,471,454 4.91 $ 2.44 1,030,090 $ 2.17
$ 6.81-$12.44 582,872 6.76 $ 9.28 295,231 $ 8.86
$12.50-$17.47 1,677,265 7.51 $16.77 864,550 $16.75
$17.88-$22.85 784,254 6.44 $20.79 77,778 $20.93
$22.97-$23.50 2,842,663 6.72 $23.48 112,816 $23.32
$23.62-$31.94 1,045,046 7.52 $29.03 454,132 $29.22
$32.01-$32.01 1,226,109 9.79 $32.01 921 $32.01
$32.06-$33.50 1,159,020 7.58 $33.45 555,318 $33.48
$33.55-$35.71 1,206,649 9.13 $35.13 364,899 $35.39
$35.89-$66.31 1,143,845 8.60 $46.36 468,589 $46.28

13,139,177 7.41 $24.66 4,224,324 $21.32

Consistent with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and basic and diluted net income per share would have been adjusted
to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands, except per share amounts): 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000 1999  

Net income (loss)—as reported $(27,700) $ 37,463 $29,717  
Net income (loss)—pro forma $(73,234) $(11,068) $13,936  
Basic net income (loss) per share—as reported $ (0.33) $    0.50 $   0.45  
Basic net income (loss) per share—pro forma $  (0.86) $    (0.15) $   0.21  
Diluted net income (loss) per share—as reported $ (0.33) $    0.45 $   0.38  
Diluted net income (loss) per share—pro forma $  (0.86) $    (0.15) $   0.18  

The impact on pro forma net income (loss) per share and net income (loss) in the table above may not be indicative of the effect in future years as options vest
over several years and the Company continues to grant stock options to new and current employees. 
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(each February and August). The Company has reserved 2,000,000 shares of
common stock for issuance under the plan. Shares are purchased through 
employees’ payroll deductions, up to a maximum of 15% of employees’ 
compensation, at purchase prices equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock at either the date of the employee’s
entrance to the offering period or the purchase date. No participant may 
purchase more than 3,000 shares or $25,000 worth of common stock in any
one calendar year. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, 170,250, 223,094 and
274,310 shares were purchased at average per share prices of $22.74,
$10.90 and $3.79, respectively. At December 31, 2001 there were 986,944
shares available to be granted under this plan. 

Other Benefit Plans: 

Under Israeli labor laws and agreements the Company is required to pay 
severance pay upon dismissal of an employee of the Company’s Israeli 
subsidiary or upon termination of employment in specified circumstances. 
The Company’s severance pay for its employees in Israel, based upon length
of service and the latest monthly salary (one month’s salary for each year
worked), is mainly covered by purchased managerial insurance policies. 
The value of these policies is recorded as an asset in the consolidated 
balance sheets. Under labor agreements, these insurance policies are the
property of the employees, subject to specified limitations. The net amount 
of severance pay charged against income totaled approximately $977,000,
$739,000 and $239,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. At December
31, 2001 and 2000 severance pay funded included in other assets was 
approximately $1,183,000 and $931,000, respectively, and accrued severance
pay included in long-term liabilities was approximately $2,035,000 and
$1,540,000, respectively. 

The Company is also contributing funds on behalf of its Israeli employees to
an individual insurance policy. This policy provides a combination of savings
plan, insurance and severance pay benefits to the insured employee. It pro-
vides for payments to the employee upon retirement or death and secures a
substantial portion of the severance pay, if any, to which the employee is
legally entitled upon termination of employment. Each participating employee

contributes an amount equal to 5.0% of the employee’s base salary, and the
employer contributes between 13.3% and 15.8% of the employee’s base
salary. All of the Company’s full-time Israeli employees participate in this ben-
efit package. The Company also provide some employees with an education
fund, to which each participating employee contributes an amount equal to
2.5% of the employee’s base salary, and the employer contributes an amount
equal to 7.5% of the employee’s base salary. 

15. Income Taxes:

Income tax expense consists of the following (in thousands): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000 1999       

Current
U. S. Federal $ 13,353 $24,955 $20,460 
Foreign 1,641 855 337  
State and local 2,500 4,212 817      

Total current 17,494 30,022 21,614  

Deferred
U. S. Federal (2,196) (5,423) (6,538)  
Foreign (34) (15) (130)  
State and local (524) (337) (1,330)     

Total deferred (2,754) (5,775) (7,998)     

Income tax expense $ 14,740 $24,247 $13,616

The sources of income (loss) before the provision for income taxes are as 
follows (in thousands): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000 1999  

United States $(21,960) $60,498 $49,765  
Foreign 9,000 1,212 (6,432)  
Income (loss) before 

provision for income taxes $(12,960) $61,710 $43,333
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Preferred Share Rights Purchase Plan: 

In July 1998, the Board of Directors approved a Preferred Shares Rights
Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”). The Rights Agreement is intended to
protect stockholders’ rights in the event of an unsolicited takeover attempt. 
It is not intended to prevent a takeover of the Company on terms that are
favorable and fair to all stockholders and will not interfere with a merger
approved by the Board of Directors. Upon becoming exercisable, each right
entitles stockholders to buy 1/1000 of a share of Series A Preferred Stock of
the Company at an exercise price of $400.00, subject to adjustment. The
rights will be exercisable only if a person or a group (an “Acquiring Person”)
acquires or announces a tender or exchange offer to acquire 20% or more 
of the Company’s common stock. 

In the event that an Acquiring Person acquires 20% or more of the Company’s
Common Stock (a “Triggering Event”), each right not held by the Acquiring
Person will entitle the holder to purchase for the exercise price that number 
of shares of Common Stock having a market value equal to two times the
exercise price. In addition, in the event that, following a Triggering Event, the
Company is acquired in a merger or sells 50% or more of its assets, each
right not held by an Acquiring Person will entitle the holder to purchase for 
the exercise price that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring
company having a market value equal to two times the exercise price. The
rights are redeemable, at the Company’s option, at a price of $0.005 per right.
The Company may also exchange the rights for shares of Common Stock
under certain circumstances. The rights will expire on the earlier of July 15,
2008 or the date of their redemption or exchange. 

14. Employee Benefits Plans:

401(k) Plans: 

The Company has a 401(k) Plan (the Polycom 401(k) Plan), which covers 
the majority of employees in the United Sates. Each eligible employee may
elect to contribute to the Polycom 401(k) Plan, through payroll deductions, 
up to 20% of their compensation, subject to current statutory limitations. The
Company does not offer its own stock as an investment option in the Polycom

401(k) Plan. The Company, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, may
make matching contributions to the Polycom 401(k) Plan. Beginning with fiscal
year 2000 the Company matched in cash 50% of the first 3% of compensation
employees contribute to the Polycom 401(k) Plan, up to a maximum of 
$500 per participating employee per year. For fiscal year 2001 and 2002, 
the maximum Company cash match has been increased to $1,000 and
$1,500, respectively, per participating employee per year. 

The Company also had a 401(k) Plan which arose from the acquisition of
Accord (the Accord 401(k) Plan), which covers substantially all Accord
employees in the United States. Each eligible employee may elect to contribute
to the Accord 401(k) Plan, through payroll deductions, up to 15% of their
compensation, subject to current statutory limitations. The Company, at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, may make matching contributions to the
Accord 401(k) Plan but had not done so through 2000. In connection with the
acquisition of Accord, the Accord 401(k) Plan terminated in 2001. Beginning
April 2, 2001, all eligible formerly Accord employees may elect to participate 
in the Polycom 401(k) Plan. 

The Company also had a defined contribution profit sharing plan incorporating
features under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which arose from
the acquisition of PictureTel (the PictureTel Plan), which covered substantially
all PictureTel employees. In connection with the acquisition of PictureTel,
the PictureTel Plan terminated in 2001. Beginning January 1, 2002 all eligible
formerly PictureTel employees may elect to participate in the Polycom
401(k) Plan. 

The Company’s contributions to the Polycom 401(k) Plan and the Accord
401(k) Plan totaled approximately $433,000 and $183,000 in fiscal 2001 and
2000, respectively and zero in 1999. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan: 

Under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Company can grant stock 
purchase rights to all eligible employees during offering periods of up to a
maximum of 24 months with purchase dates approximately every six months 
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The percentage of total net revenues for the Video Communications, Voice
Communications, Network Systems, Network Access Products and
iPower-related Service were as follows: 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999  

Video Communications 53% 58% 56%  
Voice Communications 19% 23% 31%  
Network Systems 22% 11% 11%  
Network Access Products 4% 8% 2%  
iPower-related Service 2% — —      
Total net revenue 100% 100% 100%      

No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s net revenues in
2001 or 2000. Lucent Technologies, Inc. accounted for 10% of the Company’s
net revenues in 1999. 

The Company’s fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation, are located in
the following geographical areas (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000  

North America $23,758 $17,998  
Israel 2,976 2,993  
Europe, Middle East & Africa 1,609 707  
Other 602 348

Total $28,945 $22,046      

17. Earnings Per Share (EPS) Disclosures:

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of SFAS 128, a reconciliation
of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted EPS is provided as 
follows (in thousands, except per share amounts). 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000 1999  

Numerator—basic and diluted EPS     
Net income (loss) $(27,700) $37,463 $29,717      

Denominator—basic EPS     
Weighted average common 

stock outstanding 85,213 75,807 67,307  
Treasury shares (73) — —  
Shares subject to repurchase (17) (543) (1,832)     

Total shares used in calculation 
of basic EPS 85,123 75,264 65,475      

Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.33) $   0.50 $   0.45      

Denominator—diluted EPS     
Denominator—basic EPS 85,123 75,264 65,475  
Effect of dilutive securities:     

Common stock options — 6,035 6,543  
Shares subject to repurchase — 543 1,832  
Convertible warrants and 

preferred stock — 1,986 3,998      
Total shares used in calculation 

of diluted EPS 85,123 83,828 77,848      
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.33) $   0.45 $   0.38      

In 2001, options to purchase 2,998,580 shares of common stock on a weighted
average basis have not been included in the computation of diluted net loss
per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive. 

In 2001, 2000 and 1999, 4,635,424, 864,887 and 268,522 options, respectively,
on a weighted average basis were excluded from the computation of earnings
per share, since the option exercise price was greater than the average market
price of the common shares for the period. 

18. Subsequent Event (Unaudited):

In February 2002, the Company completed a follow-on public offering in
which it sold 8,050,000 shares of our common stock, including an over-allot-
ment option of 1,050,000 shares exercised by the underwriters, at a price of
$31.20 per share for net proceeds to the Company of approximately $238
million after underwriting discounts and commissions and our expenses. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds from this sale primarily for general
corporate purposes, including working capital and capital expenditures, as
well as for acquisitions of complementary businesses or technologies. 
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The Company’s tax provision differs from the provision computed using 
statutory tax rates as follow (in thousands): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

2001 2000 1999      

Federal tax at statutory rate $ (4,536) $21,590 $15,167  
State taxes, 

net of federal benefit (492) 2,401 1,719  
Nondeductible expenses 3,451 729 1,603  
In-process research and 

development and 
goodwill amortization 21,633 — —  

Tax exempt interest (1,260) (1,242) (228)  
Foreign income at tax rates 

different than U.S. rates (2,660) — 2,458  
Change in valuation allowance — — (7,679)  
Research and 

development tax credit (1,650) (1,162) (2,183)  
Other 255 1,931 2,759      
Tax provision $14,740 $24,247 $13,616   

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax
assets are presented below (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31, 

2001 2000

Fixed assets, principally due to 
differences in depreciation $10,144 $  1,516  

Other accrued liabilities 45,946 12,587  
Net operating loss carryforwards 3,181 7,019  
Tax credit carryforwards 9,894 8,312  
Investments 3,883 —      
Deferred tax asset 73,048 29,434  
Acquired intangibles (7,923) —      
Net deferred tax asset $65,125 $29,434      

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has tax net operating loss carryfor-
wards of approximately $9.1 million and tax credit carryforwards of approxi-
mately $9.9 million. These net operating loss carryforward and the tax credit
carryforward begin to expire in 2007. A portion of the future utilization of the
Company’s net operating loss and credit carryforwards are subject to certain
limitations due to a change in ownership of companies acquired by the
Company in 1998 and 2001. 

The Company provides for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries unless they are considered permanently invested outside of the U.S.
At December 31, 2001, the cumulative amount of earnings upon which U.S.
income tax has not been provided is approximately $50.1 million. 

Tax benefits of $12.5 million in 2001 and $38.3 million in 2000 associated with
the exercise of employee stock plans were added to stockholders equity. 

The Company has been granted a beneficial tax status by the Israeli tax
authorities for income earned in Israel. Under the terms, the Company will 
not be subject to tax until two years after all accumulated net operating loss
carryforwards have been offset by taxable income. A reduced 25% rate will 
be applied to income for eight years following the two year exemption. The
reduced tax rates, as well as other tax benefits, are conditional upon the
Company fulfilling the terms stipulated under the Israeli law for the
Encouragement of Capital Investments in 1959. Failure to comply with these
conditions may result in cancellation of the benefits in whole or in part. 

16. Business Segment Information:

The Company markets its products in the United States and in foreign countries
primarily through resellers and has five product lines; Video Communications,
Voice Communications, Network Systems, Network Access Products and
Services. For reporting purposes the Company aggregates all five product
lines into one reporting segment named Communications. 

The Company’s net revenues are substantially denominated in U.S. dollars
and are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999  

United States $242,055 $245,373 $153,342  
Canada 2,812 7,054 4,825

Total North America 244,867 252,427 158,167      
Europe, Middle East & Africa 72,887 70,602 43,312  
Asia 58,394 42,120 18,550  
Caribbean & Latin America 7,041 8,405 4,873

Total international 138,322 121,127 66,735
Total net revenue $383,189 $373,554 $224,902 
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The following table presents the high and low sale prices per share for our
common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market for the periods
indicated. The stock prices have been adjusted where appropriate to reflect a
two-for-one split of our common stock effected as a stock dividend on
August 31, 2000. 

HIGH LOW 

Year Ended December 31, 2000:
First Quarter $66.50 $26.75
Second Quarter 56.00 26.00  
Third Quarter 69.88 39.00  
Fourth Quarter 72.25 29.38  

Year Ended December 31, 2001: 
First Quarter $37.81 $10.75  
Second Quarter 29.88 10.88  
Third Quarter 30.00 17.91  
Fourth Quarter 42.59 23.88  

Year Ending December 31, 2002: 
First Quarter (through February 15, 2002) $39.09 $22.37  

On February 15, 2002, the last reported sale price of our common stock 
as reported on the Nasdaq National Market was $24.27 per share. As of
December 31, 2001, there were approximately 2,062 holders of record of our
common stock. Because many of our shares of common stock are held by
brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to esti-
mate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders. 
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2000 2001

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER  

Net revenue:          
Polycom $67,295 $77,488 $86,489 $100,030 $96,217 $84,470 $82,454 $120,048 
Accord Networks 8,259 9,571 10,874 13,548 — — — —
Restated net revenues $75,554 $87,059 $97,363 $113,578 $96,217 $84,470 $82,454 $120,048  

Gross profit:          
Polycom $37,558 $43,318 $47,384 $ 53,075 $55,313 $48,105 $47,118 $ 65,906  
Accord Networks 5,500 6,351 7,280 8,989 — — — —
Restated gross profit $43,058 $49,669 $54,664 $ 62,064 $55,313 $48,105 $47,118 $ 65,906  

Net income (loss):          
Polycom $11,629 $11,601 $13,846 $ 12,152 $  6,445 $  6,335 $ 9,875 $ (50,355)  
Accord Networks 220 (6,111) 1,339 (7,213) — — — —
Restated net income (loss) $11,849 $ 5,490 $15,185 $   4,939 $  6,445 $  6,335 $ 9,875 $ (50,355)  

Basic net income (loss) per 
share (basic EPS)(a):          

Polycom $   0.17 $   0.17 $   0.19 $     0.16 $   0.08 $   0.08 $   0.12 $    (0.56)  
Accord Networks 0.00 (0.09) 0.00 (0.10) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Restated basic EPS $   0.17 $   0.08 $   0.19 $     0.06 $   0.08 $   0.08 $   0.12 $    (0.56)  

Diluted net income (loss) per 
share (diluted EPS)(a):         

Polycom $   0.15 $   0.15 $   0.18 $     0.15 $   0.08 $   0.07 $   0.11 $    (0.56)  
Accord Networks 0.00 (0.08) 0.00 (0.09) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Restated diluted EPS $   0.15 $   0.07 $   0.18 $     0.06 $   0.08 $   0.07 $   0.11 $   (0.56) 

(a)  Reflects the two-for-one stock split effective August 31, 2000. 

All historical financial information has been restated to reflect the acquisitions that were accounted for as a pooling of interests.

Supplementary Financial Data (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Price Range of Common Stock



75

74

BOARD MEMBERS

Betsy S. Atkins (2)(3)

CEO, Baja LLC

Co-Founder,

Ascend Communications

Member, Board of Directors,

Lucent Technologies

John Seely Brown (2)

Chief Scientist, 

Xerox Corporation

Former Director,

Xerox PARC

Robert C. Hagerty
Chairman of the Board, 

President and CEO,

Polycom, Inc.

John A. Kelley (1)(3)

President and COO, 

McDATA Corporation

Michael R. Kourey
Senior Vice President of 

Finance and Administration, 

CFO and Secretary, 

Polycom, Inc.

Stanley J. Meresman (1) 

General Partner and 

COO of Technology, 

Crossover Ventures

William A. Owens (1)

Co-Chief Executive Officer 

and Vice Chairman,

Teledesic LLC

(1) Member on the 
audit committee

(2) Member of the 
compensation committee

(3) Member of the 
nomination committee

OFFICERS

Robert C. Hagerty
Chairman of the Board,

President and CEO

Michael R. Kourey
Senior Vice President,

Finance and Administration, 

CFO and Secretary

Sunil K. Bhalla
Senior Vice President

and General Manager,

Voice Communications

Pierre-Francois Catte
Senior Vice President,

Corporate Operations

Jules L. DeVigne
Executive Vice President 

and General Manager, 

Network Systems

Philip B. Keenan
Senior Vice President, 

Worldwide Sales 

and Marketing

Craig B. Malloy
Senior Vice President 

and General Manager,

Video Communications

Hans H. Schwarz
Senior Vice President and 

General Manager, 

Network Access Products 

and Chief Systems Architect

CORPORATE AND INVESTOR INFORMATION

Polycom, Inc.’s Form 10-K, filed 

with the Securities and Exchange

Commission, will be sent without
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E-mail: investor@polycom.com
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STOCK MARKET INFORMATION

Polycom, Inc. stock is quoted 

daily on the NASDAQ stock 

market under the symbol PLCM. 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

EquiServe

P.O. Box 43010

Providence, RI 02940

Shareholder Relations 

Tel: 781-575-3120

www.equiserve.com

LEGAL COUNSEL

Wilson Sonsini 

Goodrich & Rosati

650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94304-1050

Tel: 650-493-9300

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Ten Almaden Blvd. #1600

San Jose, CA 95113 U.S.A.

Tel: 408-817-3700
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Worldwide Offices

NORTH AMERICA

USA

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Polycom, Inc.

1565 Barber Lane

Milpitas, CA 95035

Tel: 408-526-9000 or

1-800-POLYCOM

Fax: 408-526-9100

9040 Roswell Road

Suite 450

Atlanta, GA 30350-1877

Tel: 770-641-4400

Fax: 770-641-4444

100 Minuteman Road

Andover, MA 01810

Tel: 978-292-5000

Fax: 978-292-3300

5000 Plaza on the Lake

Suite 200

Austin, TX 78746

Tel: 512-372-7000

Fax: 512-372-7001

CANADA

Polycom Canada, Ltd.

1000 W. 14th Street

North Vancouver, BC

V7 P 3P3

Canada

Tel: 604-990-5415

Fax: 604-990-547

EUROPE
MIDDLE EAST
AFRICA

UNITED KINGDOM

EUROPEAN HEADQUARTERS

Polycom (UK), Ltd.

270 Bath Road

Slough, Berkshire

SL1 4DX

United Kingdom

Tel: 44 (0) 1753-723-000

Fax: 44 (0) 1753-723-010

NETHERLANDS

Polycom B.V.

Transpolispark

Siriusdreef 41

2132WT Hoofddorp

The Netherlands

Tel: 31 (0) 23-230-2600

Fax: 31 (0) 23-230-2601

FRANCE

Polycom SARL

107, Quai Du Dr Dervaux

6th Floor

92600 Asinères sur Seine

France

Tel: 33 (0) 141-321-999

Fax: 33 (0) 141-321-998

ISRAEL

Polycom Israel, Ltd.

94 Derch Em Hamoshavot

PO Box 3654

Petach-Tikva

Israel 49130

Tel: 972-3-925-1444

Fax: 972-3-921-1571

ASIA PACIFIC

HONG KONG

ASIA PACIFIC HEADQUARTERS

Polycom Hong Kong Ltd.

Rm 1101 Mass Mutual Tower

38 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: 852-2861-3113

Fax: 852-2866-8028

CHINA

Polycom Shanghai

Representative Office

Rm 2016 Far East 

International Plaza

299 Xian Xia Road

Shanghai 200051

China

Tel: 8621-5257-4042

Fax: 8621-6235-0950

Polycom Beijing

Representative Office

Suite 1004 

Beijing Fortune Bldg. Tower

5 Dong San Huan Bei Road

Chaoyang District 

Beijing 100004

China

Tel: 8610-6590-8311

Fax: 8610-6590-8312

JAPAN

Polycom K.K.

Shiroganedai Bldg.

3-19-6 Shiroganedai

Minato-Ku, Tokyo

108-0071 Japan

Tel: 813-5421-3636

Fax: 813-5421-3611

LATIN AMERICA

AND CARIBBEAN

LATIN AMERICAN HEADQUARTERS

Polycom

2655 LeJeune Road

Suite 542

Coral Gables, FL 33134

Tel: 305-779-3042

Fax: 305-779-3041

BRAZIL

Polycom

Av Das Naçoes Unidas 12551-90 andar

Sao Paulo 04578-903

Brazil

Tel: 55-11-3443-7481/82

Fax: 55-11-3443-7618

MEXICO

Polycom S. de R.L. de C.V.

Fuente de Piramides No. 1-504

Tecamachalco 

Naucalpan, Edo. de Mexico 53950

Mexico

Tel: 52-55-5589-6930

Fax: 52-55-5294-9039

˜
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